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   For the year ended 31 December 
   2021  2020 
 Notes  AED ’000  AED ’000 
     (Restated) 
      
UNDERWRITING INCOME       

Gross written premiums 21   900,083    867,911  
Reinsurance premiums ceded 21   (523,839)   (496,553) 
Net retained premiums    376,244    371,358  
Net change in unearned premiums, mathematical
reserve and policyholders’ reserve 21 

 
 (111,250) 

 
 (63,495) 

Net earned premium 21   264,994    307,863  
Gross commission earned    92,015    77,649  
Total underwriting income    357,009    385,512  
      
UNDERWRITING EXPENSES      
Gross claims incurred  13.2   (685,140)   (336,569) 
Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers 13.2   533,257    206,205  
Net claims incurred  13.2   (151,883)   (130,364) 
Commission incurred 15.2   (91,062)   (105,899) 
Administrative expenses 18   (90,884)   (95,018) 
Other operational expenses related to  
  underwriting activities 19   (38,406)   (46,732) 
Net movement in fair value of investments held for  
unit linked products 12   34,678    17,263  

Total underwriting expenses    (337,557)     (360,750) 
UNDERWRITING PROFIT    19,452    24,762  
Interest income 20   6,530    8,054  
Other investment loss 20   (1,101)   (10,106) 
Net investment income /(loss) 20   5,429    (2,052) 
Provision for doubtful debts 15.1   (10,062)   (23,271) 
Board of directors’ fees 9   (1,600)   (3,375) 

PROFIT/ (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR    13,219    (3,936) 
 
Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per share (AED) 3  0.040    (0.012) 
 
 



Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

The attached explanatory notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements . 
12 

  For the year ended 31 December 
   2021  2020 
   AED ’000  AED ’000 
     (Restated) 
      
Profit / (loss) for the year   13,219    (3,936) 
      
Other comprehensive income 
 

 
    

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 
loss in subsequent years      

Change in fair value of investments held at fair 
value through other comprehensive income 

 

 222  (1,832) 
Other comprehensive Income / (loss) for the 

year 
 

 222  (1,832) 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / 
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 

 
 13,441  (5,768) 
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   Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company   

 Share  Statutory  Special  Reinsurance   Fair value  Accumulated   
 capital  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  losses  Total equity 
 AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000 
              
Balance at 1 January 2021 (As previously reported) 330,939  14,865  14,865  2,266  (11,274)   (34,513)  317,148 
Prior period adjustment 1 (Note 27 a) -  -  -  -  -  (72,270)  (72,270) 
Prior period adjustment 2 (Note 27 b) -  -  -  -  -  (22,834)  (22,834) 
Balance at 1 January 2021  (Restated) 330,939  14,865  14,865  2,266  (11,274)   (129,617)   222,044  
Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    -    13,219    13,219  
Change in fair value of investments held at fair value through other 
comprehensive income  -    -    -    -    222    -    222  

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year  -     -     -     -     222    13,219    13,441  
Net realised loss on disposal of investments held at fair value through other 
comprehensive income  -    -    -    -    11,208    (11,208)   -   

Transfer to reinsurance reserve  -    -    -    2,619    -    (2,619)   -   
Transfer to statutory reserve  -    1,322    -    -    -    (1,322)   -   
Transfer to special reserve  -    -    1,322    -    -    (1,322)   -   
Balance at 31 December 2021   330,939    16,187    16,187    4,885    156   (132,869)  235,485 
              
Balance at 1 January 2020 (As previously reported)  330,939    14,865    14,865    -     (10,268)  (24,560)  325,841   
Prior period adjustment 1 (Note 27 a) -  -  -  -  -  (75,195)  (75,195) 
Prior period adjustment 2 (Note 27 b) -  -  -  -  -  (22,834)  (22,834) 
Balance at 1 January 2020  (Restated)  330,939    14,865    14,865    -     (10,268)  (122,589)    227,812  
Loss for the year  -      -       -      -      -      (3,936)   (3,936) 
Change in fair value of investments held at fair value through other 
comprehensive income  -     -    -    -     (1,832)   -    (1,832) 
Total comprehensive loss for the year  -     -     -     -     (1,832)   (3,936)   (5,768) 
Net realised gain on disposal of investments held at fair value through other 
comprehensive income  -     -    -    -     826    (826)  - 
Transfer to reinsurance reserve  -     -    -    2,266    -    (2,266)   -  
Balance at 31 December 2020  (Restated)  330,939    14,865    14,865    2,266    (11,274)   (129,617)   222,044  
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  For the year ended 31 December 
  2021   2020 
 Notes AED’000  AED’000 
    (Restated) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Profit / (loss) for the year   13,219    (3,936) 
Adjustment for:  

   
Depreciation and amortisation 18  10,868    12,184  
Gain on disposal of investments at FVTPL 20  (2,917)   (852) 
Unrealised loss on investments at FVTPL 20  978    9,805  
Provision for doubtful debts 15  10,062    23,271  
Interest income 20  (6,530)   (8,054) 
Write off of capital work in progress 11.2 2,387  - 
Dividend income 20  (527)   (742) 
Gain on sale of property and equipment   (27)   -   
Interest on lease liabilities 22  110    339  
Interest on margin trading account   -     233  
Provision for employees' end of service benefits 23  3,081    3,607  
Operating cash flows before payment of employees' end 

of service benefits and changes in working capital 
 

30,704    35,855  
     
Changes in workings capital:     
Decrease in insurance and other receivables   27,856    48,344  
(Increase) /Decrease in reinsurance contract assets   (343,249)   50,543  
Increase / (Decrease) in insurance contract liabilities    364,832    (44,418) 
Decrease in insurance and other payables   (83,317)   (79,808) 
Increase in unit linked assets   (82,089)   (94,360) 
Increase in payables to policyholders of unit-linked products   82,089    94,360  
Employees' end of service benefits paid   (1,170)   (1,263) 
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities   (4,344)   9,253  
     
INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

   
Purchase of property and equipment  1,990    (2,698) 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment   27    -   
Purchase of investments held at FVTPL (excluding unit 
linked assets) 

 
 (8,490)   (18,183) 

Proceeds from disposal of investments held at FVTPL 
(excluding unit linked assets) 

 
 76,319    61,930  

Proceeds from disposal of investments held at FVTOCI   7,092    17,158  
Interest received   5,701    6,685  
Dividend received   527    742  
Maturities of fixed deposits with banks with original 
maturities greater than three months 

 
 15,207    (82,446) 

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities  94,393    (16,812) 
     
FINANCING ACTIVITIES  

   
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities   (2,616)   (3,988) 
Interest paid on lease liabilities   (110)   (339) 
Interest paid on margin trading account    -     (233) 
Net cash used in financing activities   (2,726)   (4,560) 
     
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS   87,323    (12,119) 
  

   
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January   4,558    16,677  
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 
DECEMBER 

6.1 
 91,881    4,558  

 
Non cash items 
- During the year ended 31 December 2021, the non cash transaction related to transfer towards addition to intangible 

assets and property and equipment from capital work in progress amounting to AED 4,199 thousand and AED 833 
thousand respectively (31 December 2020: transfer towards addition to intangible assets and property and equipment 
from capital work in progress amounting to AED 52 thousand and AED 172 thousand respectively ). 

- During the year ended 31 December 2021, there is transfer on non cash investments amounting to AED  
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1  CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 
Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. (the "Company") is incorporated as a public shareholding company and operates 
in the United Arab Emirates under a trade license issued by the Government of Dubai. The Company is registered under 
the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, as amended, relating to commercial companies. The Company is subject to the 
regulations of U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended, concerning establishment of the Insurance Authority 
and Organisation of its Operations, and is registered with the Insurance Companies Register of the Central Bank of the 
UAE (formerly, the UAE Insurance Authority), under registration number 67. The Company's registered corporate 
office is at Single Business Tower, Sheikh Zayed Road, P.O. Box 119227, Dubai, United Arab Emirates ("UAE"). The 
Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange (“ADX”). 
 
The principal activity of the Company is the writing of insurance of all types including life. The Company operates 
through its Head Office in Dubai and branch Offices in Abu Dhabi, Dubai, Sharjah, Ajman and Ras Al Khaimah. 
 
The Company was required, for the year ended 31 December 2021, to be in compliance with the provisions of the UAE 
Federal Law No. 2 of 2015, as amended. However, on 20 September 2021, the UAE Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 
2021 ("Companies Law") was issued and came into effect on 2 January 2022 which repealed the UAE Federal Law 
No. 2 of 2015. The Company has 12 months from 2 January 2022 to comply with the provisions of the UAE Federal 
Decree Law No 32 of 2021. 
 
Federal Decree Law No. (24) of 2020 which amends certain provisions of the U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 on 
Establishment of Insurance Authority and Organization of its Operations was issued on 27 September 2020 and the 
amendments came into effect on 2 January 2021. Effective 2 January 2021, the Insurance Sector became under the 
supervision and authority of the Central Bank of  the United Arab Emirates (“CBUAE”). 
 
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of 
Directors on 28 March 2022. The Directors of the Company have the power to amend and reissue the financial 
statements. 
 
2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
2.1  Basis of preparation 
 
The financial statements are presented in Arab Emirates Dirham (“AED”) and all values are rounded to nearest thousand 
(“AED’000”) except when otherwise indicated. 
 
The financial statements has been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the financial assets held at fair value 
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), 
unit linked assets (excluding cash held for policyholders) which are measured at fair value and the provision for 
employees’ end of service benefits which are measured using the projected unit credit method under IAS 19. 
 
The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity, with a distinction based on 
expectations regarding recovery or settlement within twelve months after the reporting date (current) and more than 
twelve months after the reporting date (non-current). However, the following balances would generally be classified as 
current: cash and cash equivalents and bank overdraft. The following balances would generally be classified as non-
current: property and equipment, right of use assets, intangible assets, unit linked assets and statutory deposits. 
 
The following balances are of mixed nature (including both current and non-current portions): investment securities, 
reinsurance contract assets, bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months, insurance and other 
receivables, insurance contract liabilities, insurance and other payables, payables to policyholders of unit linked 
products and provision for employees’ end of service benefits. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.2  Statement of compliance 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) 
and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) applicable to companies reporting under 
IFRS and applicable requirements of United Arab Emirates (U.A.E.) Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, as amended, United 
Arab Emirates (U.A.E.) Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 on Establishment of Insurance Authority and Organization of its 
Operations, as amended, and the UAE Insurance Authority Board of Directors’ Decision No. (25) of 2014 pertinent to 
the Financial Regulations for Insurance Companies. 
 
The financial statements comply with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). 
 
2.3   Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)  
 
2.3.a  New and revised IFRSs and interpretations applied on the financial statements 
 
The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, 
have been adopted in these financial statements. The application of these revised IFRSs, except where stated, have not 
had any material impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior years. 
 
Amendment to IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ – Covid-19 related rent concessions (Effective date 1 June 2020) - As a result 
of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees. Such concessions might take 
a variety of forms, including payment holidays and deferral of lease payments. On 28 May 2020, the IASB published 
an amendment to IFRS 16 that provides an optional practical expedient for lessees from assessing whether a rent 
concession related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees can elect to account for such rent concessions in the 
same way as they would if they were not lease modifications. In many cases, this will result in accounting for the 
concession as variable lease payments in the period(s) in which the event or condition that triggers the reduced payment 
occurs. 
 
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 – Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 
(Effective date 1 January 2021) In August 2020, the IASB made amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and 
IFRS 16 to address the issues that arise during the reform of an interest rate benchmark rate, including the replacement 
of one benchmark with an alternative one.  
The Phase 2 amendments provide the following reliefs: 
 When changing the basis for determining contractual cash flows for financial assets and liabilities (including lease 

liabilities), the reliefs have the effect that the changes, that are necessary as a direct consequence of IBOR reform 
and which are considered economically equivalent, will not result in an immediate gain or loss in the income 
statement. 

 The hedge accounting reliefs will allow most IAS 39 or IFRS 9 hedge relationships that are directly affected by  
IBOR reform to continue. However, additional ineffectiveness might need to be recorded. 

 
2.3.b New and revised IFRS issued but not yet effective and not early adopted 
 
Amendment to IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ – COVID-19 related rent concessions Extension of the practical expedient 
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021) - As a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) 
pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees. In May 2020, the IASB published an amendment to IFRS 16 
that provided an optional practical expedient for lessees from assessing whether a rent concession related to COVID-
19 is a lease modification. On 31 March 2021, the IASB published an additional amendment to extend the date of the 
practical expedient from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022. Lessees can elect to account for such rent concessions in the 
same way as they would if they were not lease modifications. In many cases, this will result in accounting for the 
concession as variable lease payments in the period(s) in which the event or condition that triggers the reduced payment 
occurs.  
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2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.3   Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) (continued) 
 
2.3.b New and revised IFRS issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (continued) 
 
Amendments to IFRS 3, IAS 16, IAS 37 and some annual improvements on IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IAS 41 and IFRS 
16 (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022) - Amendments to IFRS 3, ‘Business 
combinations’ update a reference in IFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting without changing 
the accounting requirements for business combinations. 
 
Amendments to IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ prohibit a company from deducting from the cost of property, 
plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its 
intended use. Instead, a company will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. 
 
Amendments to IAS 37, ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’ specify which costs a company 
includes when assessing whether a contract will be loss-making. 
 
Annual improvements make minor amendments to IFRS 1, ‘First-time Adoption of IFRS’, IFRS 9, ‘Financial 
instruments’, IAS 41, ‘Agriculture’ and the Illustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, ‘Leases’. 
 
Narrow scope amendments to IAS 1, Practice statement 2 and IAS 8 (Effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after  1 January 2023) - The amendments aim to improve accounting policy disclosures and to help users of the 
financial statements to distinguish between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. 
 
IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after  1 January 2023) - On 18 May 
2017, the IASB finished its long-standing project to develop an accounting standard on insurance contracts and 
published IFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’. IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4, which currently permits a wide variety of practices. 
IFRS 17 will fundamentally change the accounting by all entities that issue insurance contracts and investment contracts 
with discretionary participation features. 
 
The standard applies to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted if IFRS 
15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ and IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ are also applied. 
 
IFRS 17 requires a current measurement model, where estimates are remeasured in each reporting period. The 
measurement is based on the building blocks of discounted, probability-weighted cash flows, a risk adjustment and a 
contractual service margin (“CSM”) representing the unearned profit of the contract. A simplified premium allocation 
approach is permitted for the liability for the remaining coverage if it provides a measurement that is not materially 
different from the general model or if the coverage period is one year or less. However, claims incurred will need to be 
measured based on the building blocks of discounted, risk-adjusted, probability weighted cash flows. 
 
Amendments to IFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’ (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2023) - The IASB issued the amendments to IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’, on 25 June 2020, together with an 
amendment to IFRS 4, so that eligible insurers can still apply IFRS 9 alongside IFRS 17. This concluded the IASB’s 
targeted amendments to IFRS 17 which aimed to ease implementation of the standard by reducing implementation 
costs and making it easier for entities to explain, to investors and others, the results from applying IFRS 17. 
 
IFRS 17 should be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application 
permitted, and the amendments should be applied at the same time. 
 
On 28 October 2021, the IASB (‘Board’) redeliberated the Exposure Draft proposing a narrow-scope amendment 
relating to the presentation of comparative information on initial application of both IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’, 
and IFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’, considering the feedback from the comment letters received. 
 
The amendment would permit an entity to apply an optional classification overlay in the comparative period(s) 
presented on initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9. The overlay would allow such assets to be classified, on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis, in the comparative period(s) in a way that aligns with how the entity expects those 
assets to be classified on initial application of IFRS 9. Following feedback on the proposals, the Board extended the 
scope of the overlay to include all financial assets, including those held in respect of activities not connected to contracts 
within the scope of IFRS 17. The overlay could also be applied by entities that already apply IFRS 9. The Board issued 
the amendment to IFRS 17 on 9 December 2021.  
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2   BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.3   Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) (continued) 
 
2.3.b New and revised IFRS issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (continued) 
 
Amendments to IFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’ (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2023) (continued) 
 
Given the challenges, the Company has taken multiple initiatives till date to ensure the progress of IFRS 17 
implementation is in line with the requirements. With the necessary guidance from the Central Bank of the UAE and 
to successfully implement IFRS 17, the Company has prepared, visualized and strategized the journey to implementing  
 
Given that the Company writes life and non-life business, including unit-linked policies, the Premium Allocation 
Approach, General Measurement Model and Variable Fee Approach will all be used for IFRS 17 reporting, depending 
on the nature and term of contracts.  
 
The Company is making reasonable progress in its implementation of IFRS 17 and expects to be fully compliant with 
the standard by its implementation date. 
 
Management expects that the adoption of IFRS 17 will have a material impact on the amounts reported and disclosures 
made in its financial statements in respect of its insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held. The impact 
assessment is evolving at different points in time and the final assessment is expected to be ready during the second 
quarter of 2022. 
 
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effects of the application of this standard until the 
Company performs a detailed review post the design phase of implementation which is in progress.  
 
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’ – Classification of liabilities as current or non-
current (Deferred until accounting periods starting not earlier than 1 January 2024) - These narrow-scope 
amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’, clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or 
non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by the 
expectations of the entity or events after the reporting date (for example, the receipt of a waiver or a breach of covenant). 
The amendment also clarifies what IAS 1 means when it refers to the ‘settlement’ of a liability. 
 
The Company is currently assessing the impact of these standards, interpretations and amendments on the future 
financial statements and intends to adopt these, if applicable, when they become effective. 
 
There are no other relevant applicable new standards and amendments to published standards or IFRIC interpretations 
that have been issued but are not effective for the first time for the Company’s financial year beginning on or after 1 
January 2021 that would be expected to have a material impact on these financial statements. 
 
2.4.1 Insurance contracts 
 
2.4.1.a Product classification 
 
The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. Insurance contracts are those 
contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) 
by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects 
the policyholders.  As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk of at least 
10%, by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.  
 
Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial risk with no significant insurance risk.  Financial risk is 
the risk of a possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, security price, commodity price, foreign 
exchange rate, index of price or rates, a credit rating or credit index or other variable. 
 
Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its 
lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are 
extinguished or expire. 
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2   BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.4  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4.1 Insurance contracts (continued) 
 
2.4.1.a Product classification (continued) 
 
Some insurance and investment contracts contain discretionary participating features (DPF) which entitle the contract holder 
to receive, as a supplement to the standard guaranteed benefits, additional benefits or bonuses: 

 
 That are likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits; 
 Whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the insurer; and 
 That are contractually based on: 

 
(i)   the performance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contract; 
(ii)   realised / unrealised investment returns on a specified pool of assets held by the issuer; or, 
(iii) the profit or loss of the Company, fund or other entity that issues that contract. 
 
Under IFRS 4, DPF can be either treated as an element of equity or as a liability or can be split between the two elements. 
The Company’s policy is to treat all DPF as a liability within insurance or investment contract liabilities. 
 
The policyholder bears the financial risks relating to some insurance contracts or investment contracts. Such products are 
usually unit-linked contracts. 
 
2.4.1.b Recognition and measurement 
 
Insurance contracts are classified into three main categories, depending on the duration of risk and whether or not the 
terms and conditions are fixed. 
 
(i) Short-term insurance contracts 
 
These contracts are medical, motor, property, marine, engineering, general accident as well as short-duration life 
insurance contracts. 
 
Short-duration life insurance contracts protect the Company’s customers from the consequences of events such as, but 
not limited to, death or disability.  
 
In respect of short term insurance contracts, premium are recognised as revenue (earned premiums) proportionately 
over the period of coverage with the exception of marine cargo, where it is assumed that each policy is earned fully in 
the quarter following the quarter in which it was written; hence the unearned premium reserve (“UPR”) at the end of a 
particular quarter will be equal to the written premium in that quarter and engineering where UPR is calculated on 
increasing risk basis as required in the Financial Regulations issued by the CBUAE (formerly, the IA). The portion of 
the premium received in respect of in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the end of the reporting period is 
reported as the unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown before deduction of the commission. 
 
Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the statement of income as incurred based on the estimated liability 
for compensation owed to contract holders or third parties damaged by the contract holders. They include direct claims 
settlement costs which arise from events that have occurred up to the end of the reporting period even if they have not 
been reported to the Company. The Company does not discount its liabilities for unpaid claims. Liabilities for unpaid 
claims are estimated using the input of assessments for individual cases reported to the Company and statistical analyses 
for the claims incurred but not reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate cost of more complex claims that may 
be affected by external factors (such as court decisions). Insurance contract liabilities also include reinsurance share of 
third party recoveries that are outstanding but not yet confirmed for the by the respective insurance companies against 
the recoveries of claims that were already received by the Company. Once the third party recoveries are confirmed, 
they are reclassified to “Due to reinsurance companies” within “Insurance and other payables” on the statement of 
statement of financial position. 
 
Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserves correspond to the provision representing future claim expenses and 
related handling costs that are not specific to a claim. It represents all other expenses and costs that are related to the 
adjudication of claims but cannot be assigned to a specific claim. 
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2   BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.4  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4.1 Insurance contracts (continued) 
 
2.4.1.b Recognition and measurement (continued) 
 
(ii)  Long-term insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms 
 
The Company writes long-term term assurance policies, where a single or regular premium is paid by the policyholder 
in exchange for a fixed death benefit paid on death before the end of the term of the policy.  
 
The Company also writes long term credit life policies, where a single or monthly premium is paid by the policyholder 
in exchange for a death benefit, linked to a specified loan or mortgage, paid on death before the end of the term of the 
policy. 
 
Premiums are recognised as revenue when they become payable by the contract holder. Premiums are shown before 
deduction of commission. Policy benefits are recorded as an expense when they are incurred. 
 
A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future is recorded when the premiums are 
recognised. The liability is based on assumptions such as mortality and investment performance. A conservative 
approach is used to determine the assumptions so as to ensure adequate margin in the results. 
 
Where insurance contracts have a single premium or a limited number of premium payments due over a significantly 
shorter period than the period during which benefits are provided, the excess of the premiums payable over the valuation 
premiums is deferred and recognised as income in line with the decrease of unexpired insurance risk of the contracts 
in force or, for annuities in force, in line with the decrease of the amount of future benefits expected to be paid. The 
liabilities are recalculated at each end of the reporting period using the assumptions established at inception of the 
contracts. 
 
(iii) Long-term unit linked insurance contracts 

 
The Company writes long term unit-linked term assurance and whole of life policies, where regular policyholder 
premiums are invested into funds selected by the policyholder, in return for a death, maturity or surrender benefit 
payable to the policyholder. 
 
The benefits payable to the policyholder may be a fixed sum assured, or an amount based on the value of the 
policyholder’s unit fund, depending on the product type chosen by them. Liabilities are set equal to the policyholders’ 
account value in addition to liabilities calculated against the insurance risk embedded in the products and recorded as 
“Payables to policyholders’ of unit linked products” in the statement of financial position. These account values are 
affected by factors including but not limited to: payment of policy premiums, changes in the unit prices, policy 
administration fees, mortality charges, surrender charges and any withdrawals.  
 
The liability for these contracts includes any amounts necessary to compensate the Company for services to be 
performed over future periods. This is the case for contracts where the policy administration charges are higher in the 
initial years than in subsequent years. The mortality charges deducted in each period from the contract holders are 
considered adequate to cover the expected total death benefit claims in excess of the contract account balances in each 
period; no additional liability is therefore established for these claims. 
 
A unit-linked insurance contract is an insurance contract with an embedded derivative linking payments on the contract 
to units of investments. This embedded derivative meets the definition of an insurance contract and is not therefore 
accounted for separately from the host insurance contract. The liability for such contracts is adjusted for all changes in 
the fair value of the underlying assets. 
 
(a)  Deferred policy acquisition costs (DAC) 
 
Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with and are related to securing new contracts and renewing existing 
contracts are capitalised as an intangible asset (DAC). All other costs are recognised as expenses, when incurred. The 
DAC is subsequently amortised over the life of the contract 
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2   BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.4  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4.1 Insurance contracts (continued) 
 
2.4.1.b Recognition and measurement (continued) 
 
(b)   Liability adequacy test 
 
At the end of the reporting period, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities 
net of related DAC. In performing these tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash flows, claims handling, 
administration expenses and other associated expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such 
liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the statement of income by establishing a provision for 
losses arising from liability adequacy tests (“the unexpired risk provisions”). 
 
(c)   Reinsurance contracts held 
 
Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company is compensated for losses on one or 
more contracts issued by the Company and that meet the classification requirements for insurance contracts are 
classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these classification requirements are classified as 
financial assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract holder is another insurer 
(inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance contracts. The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its 
reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets. 
 
These assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are dependent 
on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from 
or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and 
in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for 
reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when due. 
 
The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on a quarterly basis. If there is objective evidence that the 
reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable 
amount and recognises that impairment loss in the income statement. The Company gathers the objective evidence that 
a reinsurance asset is impaired using the same process adopted for insurance receivables. The impairment loss is 
calculated following the same method used for these financial assets. 
 
The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for life insurance and general insurance 
contracts where applicable. Premium and claims on assumed reinsurance contracts are recognised as revenue or 
expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account 
the product classification of the reinsured business. 
 
Reinsurance assets also include third party recoveries that are outstanding but not yet confirmed by the respective 
insurance companies against the claims that were already paid by the Company. Once the third party recoveries are 
confirmed, they are reclassified to “Due from insurance companies” within “Insurance and other receivables” on the 
statement of financial position. 
 
(d)  Salvage and subrogation reimbursements 
 
Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell (usually damaged) property acquired in settling a claim (for 
example, salvage). The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (for 
example, subrogation). 
 
Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability for claims, 
and salvage property is recognised in other assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is the amount that can 
reasonably be recovered from the disposal of the asset. 
 
Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability for 
claims and are recognised in other assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is the assessment of the amount 
that can be recovered from the action against the liable third party. 
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2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.4  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4.1 Insurance contracts (continued) 
 
2.4.1.b Recognition and measurement (continued) 
 
(e)  Provision for default claims and refunds 
 
The Company recorded the provision for default claims and refunds relating to credit life insurance policies within 
Insurance contract liabilities. This provision is for the additional benefits covered in the specific credit life policies 
towards skip and disappearance of the customers. 
 
2.4.2 Revenue recognition 
 
(a) Interest income  
 
Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments is calculated by applying the effective interest rate 
to the gross carrying amount of the financial instrument, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (or stage 3), for which interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their amortised 
cost (i.e. net of the expected credit loss provision) and are recognised within ‘interest income’ in the statement of 
income. 
 
(b)    Dividend income 
 
Dividend income from investments is recognised in the statement of income when the Company’s right to receive dividend 
has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 
income can be measured reliably).  
 
(c)   Reinsurance commission earned  
 
Commissions earned are recognised fully at the time the related insurance contracts are written. 
 
2.4.3 Foreign currencies 
 
2.4.3.1 Functional and presentation currency 
 
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Company’s financial statements are presented 
in Arab Emirates Dirham (“AED”), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.  
 
2.4.3.2 Transactions and balances 
 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates, are generally 
recognised in the statement of income. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of income, 
within “Administrative expenses”.  
 
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are 
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities 
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or 
loss, and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as at fair value through other 
comprehensive income are recognised in statement of other comprehensive income. 
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2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.4  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4.4 Segment reporting 
 
For management purposes, the Company is organised into two business segments based on their products and services 
and has two business segments as follows: 
 
a) The general insurance segment comprises of property, fire, marine, motor, medical, general accident and 

miscellaneous risks.  
b) The life assurance segment offers short term and long term life insurance.  Revenue from this segment is derived 

primarily from insurance premium, fees and commission income, investment income and fair value gains and 
losses on investments. 

 
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments. Segment performance 
is evaluated based on profit or loss which, in certain respects, is measured differently from profit or loss in the financial 
statements. No inter-segment transactions occurred during the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. If any 
transaction were to occur, transfer prices between operating segments would be set on an arm’s length basis in a manner 
similar to transactions with third parties. 
 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker. 
 
The two operating segments i.e General Insurance and Life Insurance segments, oraganised under two Presidents who 
report into the Chief Executive Officer. The Board and its various committes have oversight on the overall operations 
of the company. 
 
2.4.5 Property and equipment  
 
Property and equipment comprises of freehold land, furniture and fixture, office equipment, motor vehicles, computer 
equipment and capital work in progress. 
 
Property and equipment is carried at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation any recognised impairment loss. 
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. These assets are classified 
to the appropriate categories of property and equipment when completed and ready for their intended use. Depreciation 
of these assets, on the same basis as other property and equipment, commences when the assets are ready for their 
intended use. 
 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised 
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of income during the reporting period 
in which they are incurred. 
 
Freehold land is not depreciated. 
 
Capital work in progress is stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.  The cost includes the cost of construction 
and other related expenditure which are capitalised as and when activities that are necessary to get the assets ready for 
use are in progress. Net realisable value represents the estimated recoverable value based on expected future usage. 
Management reviews the carrying values of the capital work in progress on an annual basis. 
 
Capital work in progress are considered to be completed when all related activities, for the entire assets have been 
completed. Upon completion, those are transferred to property and equipment.  
 
An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of comprehensive income in 
the year the asset is derecognised. 
 
 
 



Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 
(continued) 
 

24 

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.4  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4.5 Property and equipment (continued) 
 
Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for separately is 
capitalised and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off.  Other subsequent expenditure is 
capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits of the related item of property and equipment. All other 
expenditure is recognised in the statement of income as the expense is incurred. 
 
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets, other than capital work in progress, over their estimated 
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are 
reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 
 
The useful life considered in calculation of depreciation for all the assets is 5 years. 
 
2.4.6 Intangible assets 
 
Intangible assets including software and license fee for access to know how. 
 
(a) Software 
 
Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. 
 
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products 
controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met: 
 It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use; 
 Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it; 
 There is an ability to use or sell the software product; 
 It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits; 
 Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software 
      product are available; and 
 The expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured. 

 
Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development 
employee costs and an appropriate portion of directly attributable overheads. 
 
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the 
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful lives considered in the 
calculation of amortisation is 5 years. 
 
(b) License know how  
 
Licences know how is shown at historical cost. It has a definite useful life and is carried at cost less accumulated  
amortisation and impairment. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost licence over 
their estimated useful lives ie 5 years. 
 
2.4.7 Leases 
 
The Company leases office premises. Rental contract of the leases range from 1 to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated on 
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreement does not impose any 
covenants, but leased assets cannot be used as security for borrowing purposes. 
 
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability within “Insurance and other payables” at the 
date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Company. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability 
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to statement of income over the lease period so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 
 
The right-of-use asset is depreciated over shorter of the asset’s useful life or the lease term on a straight-line basis. 
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2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.4  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4.7 Leases (continued) 
 
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net 
present value of the following lease payments: 
 fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable; 
 variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, 
 amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; and 
 payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option. 
 
Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the 
liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, 
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds 
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.  
 
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following: 
 the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; 
 any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received; 
 any initial direct costs; and 
 restoration costs. 
 
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset 
and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. 
 
Extension and termination options 
 
In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to 
exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) 
are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).  
 
For buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant. 
 if there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain to extend (or 

not terminate); 
 if any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Company is typically reasonably 

certain to extend (or not terminate); and 
 otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and business disruption 

required to replace the leased asset.   
 
The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which affects this 
assessment and that is within the control of the lessee. 
 
Termination option is included in the property lease of the Company. This option held is exercisable by the Company and 
the lessor. 
 
Payments associated with short-term leases of premises are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in statement 
of income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase option. 
 
2.4.8 Dividend distribution 
 
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period 
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders. 
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2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.4  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4.9 Financial instruments 
 
(a)       Investments and other financial assets 
 
(i) Classification  
 
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
• those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss), and 
• those to be measured at amortised cost. 
 
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms 
of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in statement of income or 
statement of other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will 
depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the 
equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt investments when 
and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.  
 
(ii)           Recognition and derecognition 
 
All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the “trade date”, i.e. the date that the 
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.  Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial 
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the 
market place. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have 
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
 
(iii)          Measurement 
 
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not 
at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss. Financial assets 
with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely 
payment of principal and interest. 
 
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and 
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its 
debt instruments:  
 
 Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent 

solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial 
assets is calculated using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised 
directly in profit or loss and presented in ‘Net investment income/ (loss)’ together with foreign exchange gains 
and losses. Impairment losses are included within ‘Net investment income/(loss)’ in the statement of income. 

 
 FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or 

loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in the  income statement and 
is presented net within ‘Net investment income’ in the period in which it arises.  

 
 FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, 

where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. 
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or 
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in profit or loss. When 
the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified 
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in ‘Net investment income’. Interest income from these financial 
assets is calculated using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented 
in ‘Net investment income’. 
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2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.4  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4.9 Financial instruments (continued) 
 
(iii)         Measurement (continued) 
 
Equity investments 
 
The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL, except where the Company’s management has 
elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at FVTOCI. The Company’s policy is to 
designate equity investments at FVTOCI when those investments are held for purposes other than to generate 
investment returns. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not 
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends, when representing a return on such 
investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as “Net investment income / (loss)” when the Company’s right 
to receive payments is established. 
 
The unit-linked assets include investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products, financial assets from 
reinsurer towards policyholders of unit linked products contracts and cash held on behalf of policyholders. Investments 
held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products and financial assets from reinsurer towards policyholders of unit 
linked products contracts are accrued to the account of the contract holder at the fair value of the net gains arising from 
the underlying linked assets. All these contracts are designated as at fair value through profit or loss and were designated 
in this category upon initial recognition. Cash held on behalf of policyholders are designated as amortised cost 
investment designated in this category upon initial recognition. 
 
Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets 
  
The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried 
at amortised cost and FVTOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk. Refer to (b) below for impairment of insurance and other receivables. 
 
(b)  Insurance and other receivables 
 
Insurance and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any. A provision for doubtful debts of receivables is established 
when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original 
terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or 
financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the receivable is 
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. 
 
The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss 
is recognised in the statement of income. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance 
account for that receivable. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited in the statement of 
income. 
 
(c)  Financial liabilities 
 
The Company recognises a financial liability when it first becomes a party to the contractual rights and obligations in 
the contract.  
 
All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, minus (in the case of a financial liability that is not at 
FVTPL) transaction costs that are directly attributable to issuing the financial liability. Financial liabilities are measured 
at amortised cost, unless the Company opted to measure a liability at FVTPL.  
 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.  
 
Financial liabilities included in insurance and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at 
amortised cost. The fair value of a non-interest bearing liability is its discounted repayment amount. If the due date of 
the liability is less than one year, discounting is omitted. 
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2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.4  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4.9 Financial instruments (continued) 
 
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position 
if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense will not be 
offset in the statement of income unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, as 
specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company. 
 
(d)  Cash and cash equivalents 
 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call 
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less 
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value 
less overdrafts with banks. Bank overdrafts are shown within liabilities in the statement of financial position. 
 
(e)  Bank deposits with banks with original maturities of more than three months 
 
Deposits held with banks with original maturities of more than three months are initially measured at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Deposits held with banks are within the scope of IFRS 9 expected credit loss 
calculation for the assessment of impairment. 
 
2.4.10 Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding goodwill) 
 
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.  If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount.  An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair 
value less costs to sell and its value in use.  Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 
 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using discount rates that 
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.  In determining fair 
value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.  
 
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators. Impairment losses 
are recognised in the statement of income. 
 
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that 
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the 
Company makes an estimate of the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is 
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable 
amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the 
statement of income. 
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2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.4  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4.11 Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 
 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present  obligation 
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a 
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present 
value of those cash flows. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be 
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 
 
2.4.12 Employees’ end of service benefits 
 
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 
 
The Company provides end of service benefits to its expatriate employees in accordance with the UAE Labor Law 
which is calculated annually using the projected unit credit method in accordance with IAS 19. The present value of 
the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using profit rates on 
high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have 
terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation. 
 
The entitlement to these benefits is based upon the employees' salary and the length of service, subject to the completion 
of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. 
 
Defined contribution plan for UAE national employees 
 
The Company is a member of the pension scheme operated by the Federal Pension General and Social Security 
Authority. Contributions for eligible UAE National employees are made and charged to the statement of income, in 
accordance with the provisions of Federal Law No. 7 of 1999 relating to pension and Social Security Law. The 
employees and the Government contribute 5% and 2.5% of the “contribution calculation salary” respectively, to the 
scheme. The only obligation of the Company with respect to the retirement pension and social security scheme is to 
make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to statement of income. 
 
An accrual has been made for the past contributions relating to the services rendered by the eligible UAE National 
employees up to 31 December 2021. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have 
been paid. 
 
2.4.13 Contingencies 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial 
statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 
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2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.4  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4.14 Related parties 
 
A related party is defined as follows: 
 
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that person: 

(i) Has control or joint control over the Company; 
(ii) Has significant influence over the Company; or 
(iii) Is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of the Company. 

 
(b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies: 

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same Company (which means that each parent, 
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others). 

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member 
of a Company of which the other entity is a member). 

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. 
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity. 
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company or an 

entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also 
related to the Company; 

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);  
(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key 

management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). 
 
2.4.15 General and administration expenses 
 
Direct expenses of general insurance business are charged to respective departmental revenue accounts and is charged 
to statement of income.  
 
2.4.16 Share capital  
 
Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Incremental costs directly 
attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds. 
 
2.5    Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty 

 
In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 2.4, management is required to 
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other 
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The sensitivities for life insurance 
contracts are disclosed in note 13.10 and for general insurance contracts are disclosed in note 25.1.4 

 
Significant areas where management has used estimates, assumptions or exercised judgements are as follows: 
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2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.5  Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty (continued) 
 
2.5.1 The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts 
 
Provision is made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date. The 
liability for outstanding claims includes the cost of claims reported but yet to be paid, claims incurred but not reported 
(“IBNR”), and the estimated expenses to be incurred in settling claims. 
 
The process of establishing liability estimates is subject to considerable variability as it requires the use of informed 
estimates and judgments. These estimates and judgments are based on numerous factors, and may be revised as 
additional experience becomes available or as regulations change. The liability for outstanding claims is estimated 
using the input of assessment for individual cases reported to the Company as well as assessments performed by 
external loss adjustors where deemed necessary. Claims requiring court or arbitration decisions are estimated 
individually. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding the risk of 
major storm, tempest and flood scenarios that exist in the UAE to estimate its claims exposures. However, given the 
uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the 
original liability established. 
 
The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling 
claims, where more information about the claim event is available. Classes of business which have a longer reporting 
tail and where the IBNR proportion of the total reserve is therefore high will typically display greater variations between 
initial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty in estimating these liabilities. For the 
short-tailed classes, claims are typically reported soon after the claim event, and tend to display less variation. In 
calculating the required levels of provisions, the Company’s internal and external independent actuary use a variety of 
estimation techniques, generally based upon statistical analyses of historical experience, which assumes that the 
development pattern of the current claims will be consistent with past experience. 
 
In arriving at booked claims provisions, management also make allowance for changes or uncertainties which may 
create distortions in the underlying statistics or which might cause the cost of unsettled claims to increase or reduce 
when compared with the cost of previously settled claims including: 

 changes in patterns of claim incidence, reporting, processing, finalisation and payment; 
 changes in the legal environment; 
 the impact of inflation (both economic/wage and superimposed); 
 changes in the mix of business; 
 the impact of large losses; 
 the effects of inflation; 
 movements in industry benchmarks; 
 medical and technological developments; 
 changes in policyholder behaviour. 

 
The methods used to analyse past claim experience and to project future claim experience are largely determined by 
the available data and the nature of the portfolio. The projections given by the different methodologies assist in setting  
the range of possible outcomes. The most appropriate estimation technique is selected taking into account the 
characteristics of the business class and the extent of the development of each accident year. 
 
Large claims impacting each relevant business class are generally assessed separately, being measured on a case by 
case basis or projected separately in order to allow for the possible distortive effect of the development and incidence 
of these large claims. 
 
Outstanding claims and claims incurred but not reported are calculated gross of reinsurance. A separate estimate is 
made of the amounts recoverable from reinsurers and third parties under reinsurance contracts based on the gross 
provisions. Future cash flows are not discounted for time value of money. 
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2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.5  Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty (continued) 
 
2.5.2 Mathematical reserves 
 
Liabilities pertaining to the long-term insurance contracts are determined based on standard actuarial principles. The 
liability is determined based on the actuarial present value of future cashflows. These cashflows are based on factors, 
including but not limited to; policy benefits, expected future mortality and the structure of the product. Additional 
liabilities are determined for supplementary benefits attached to the base policy. 
 
The Company bases the mortality and morbidity estimates on standard tables that best reflect historical experience, 
adjusted where appropriate to reflect the Company’s own experience. A67 – 70 Ultimate Mortality Table of Assured 
Lives and a discount rate of 1% are used for the purpose of discounting the liabilities (31 December 2020: 1%). 
 
2.5.3 Classification of freehold land 
 
Management decides whether a property under construction will be used upon completion as owner-occupied property 
or for renting out to third parties.  If used as owner-occupied property, the value in use of the property is determined as 
part of the cash generating unit to which it belongs. Otherwise, the asset is classified as investment property and its fair 
value is determined on an individual asset basis. 
 
2.5.4 Impairment of freehold land  
 
At each reporting date or whenever a change in circumstances occurs, both internal and external sources of information 
are considered to assess whether there is an indication that freehold land is impaired. If such an indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated using fair value less costs of disposal  and/or value in use calculations as 
appropriate. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment charge is recognised to 
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment charges are recognised in the consolidated statement of 
income. 
 
2.5.5 Impairment of insurance receivables 
 
The Company reviews its insurance receivables to assess impairment on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an 
impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of income, the Company makes judgements as to whether there is 
any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from receivables. 
A provision for doubtful debts of insurance receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the 
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to their original terms. (Refer to note 2.4.9.b) 
Receivables arising from reinsurance contracts are also reviewed for impairment as part of the impairment review of 
receivables.  
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3 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 
 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year, by the weighted average number of 
shares outstanding during the year as follows: 
 

  For the year ended 
31 December   

  2021  2020 
    (Restated) 

Profit/ (loss) for the year (AED’000)  13,219  (3,936) 
Weighted average number of shares     
  outstanding during the year (’000)  330,939  330,939 
Earnings/ (loss) per share (AED)  0.040  (0.012) 
 
No figures for diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company has not issued any instruments which would 
have an impact on earnings per share when exercised, as such diluted earnings per share is equivalent to basic earnings 
per share. 
 
4 INVESTMENT SECURITIES AND UNIT LINKED ASSETS 
 
 As at  

31 December  
As at  

31 December 
 2021  2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 
   (Restated) 
    
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 4.1) 47,871  106,384 
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Note 4.2) 17  6,887 
 47,888  113,271 
    
Unit linked assets (Note 4.3) 368,887  286,798 
 
4.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
 
 As at  

31 December  
As at  

31 December 
 2021  2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 
    
Quoted equity securities in U.A.E. 19,668  71,287 
Quoted equity securities outside U.A.E. 570  500 
Quoted bonds in U.A.E. 16,450  22,118 
Investment in funds outside U.A.E. 7,364  5,083 
Unquoted equity securities outside U.A.E. 426  2,937 
Unquoted equity securities in U.A.E. 3,393  4,459 
 47,871  106,384 
 
Investments classified at fair value through profit or loss are designated in this category upon initial recognition. 
 
The bonds carry interests at the rates of 2.09% to 5.87% (31 December 2020: 2.09% to 5.87%) per annum. The bonds 
are redeemable at par from 2022 to 2026 (31 December 2020: 2021 to 2026) based on their maturity dates. There are 
no significant concentrations of credit risk to a single counter party for debt instruments and the carrying amount 
reflected above represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for such assets. 
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4 INVESTMENT SECURITIES AND UNIT LINKED ASSETS (continued) 
 
4.2 Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 
 
 As at  

31 December  
As at  

31 December 
 2021  2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 
    
Quoted equity securities in U.A.E. 17  6,587 
Unquoted equity securities in U.A.E. -  300 
 17  6,887 
 
Investments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income  are designated in this category upon initial 
recognition. 
 
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company sold equity investments held at fair value through other 
comprehensive income amounting to AED 7,092 thousand at the time of sale (31 December 2020: AED 17,158 
thousand) in line with the Company’s investment strategy. The Company realised loss of AED 11,208 thousand (31 
December 2020: loss of AED 826 thousand) which was transferred to accumulated losses. 
 
4.3 Unit linked assets 
 
 As at  

31 December  
As at  

31 December 
 2021  2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 
   (Restated) 
    
Investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products carried 

at FVTPL 231,059  175,590 
Financial assets due from reinsurer towards policyholders of unit-linked 

products carried at FVTPL 124,474  88,984 
Cash held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products carried at 

amortised cost 13,354  22,224 
 368,887  286,798 

 
4.4  Investment Concentration 
 
The CBUAE has set a maximum limit for aggregate exposure in various categories of investments. As at 31 December 
2021, the Company was in compliance with this requirement. As at 31 December 2020, the Company had investments 
more than the limits set in some categories, particularly equity instruments within and outside the UAE, and deposits 
and other debt instruments. 
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4 INVESTMENT SECURITIES AND UNIT LINKED ASSETS (continued) 
 
4.5 Movement in the financial investments  

 FVTPL   FVTOCI  Total 
 AED’000  AED’000  AED’000 
      
At 1 January 2020   159,084    25,877    184,961  
Purchases  18,183    -     18,184  
Disposals  (60,095)   (17,158)   (77,253) 
Maturities  (1,835)   -     (1,835) 
Movement in accrued interest  60    -     59  
Changes in fair value  (9,865)   (1,006)   (10,871) 
Realised gain/(loss)  852    (826)   26  
As at 31 December 2020   106,384    6,887    113,271  
Purchases  8,490    -     8,490  
Transfers  7,364   -   7,364  
Disposals  (69,294)   (7,092)   (76,386) 
Maturities  (7,025)   -     (7,025) 
Movement in accrued interest  13   -     13  
Changes in fair value   (978)   (18)   (996) 
Realised gain   2,917    240    3,157  
As at 31 December 2021   47,871    17    47,888  
 
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of financial assets measured at FVTOCI and FVTPL. 
 

 FVTPL   FVTOCI  Total 
 AED’000  AED’000  AED’000 
      
At 1 January 2020  6,899  300  7,199 
Changes in fair value 497  -  497 
As at 31 December 2020  7,396   300   7,696 
Disposals (754)  -    (754) 
Provision for doubtful debts -  (300)  (300) 
Changes in fair value  (2,823)  -  (2,823) 
As at 31 December 2021  3,819  -   3,819 

 
4.6 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using 
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the 
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing 
the asset or liability at the measurement date. 
 
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the 
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair 
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 
 
The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the inputs 
used in making the measurements. 
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4  INVESTMENT SECURITIES AND UNIT-LINKED ASSETS (continued) 
 
4.6          FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) 
 
Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument. 
 
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active 
markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less 
than active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from 
market data. 
 
Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique includes 
inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. 
This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which significant 
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments. 
 
Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison with similar instruments 
for which market observable prices exist. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and 
benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other premia used in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, 
foreign currency exchange rates, equity index prices and expected price volatilities and correlations. 
 
The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would be 
received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. 
 
4.6.a Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost 
 
Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at amortised 
cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values due to their short term nature. 
 
4.6.b Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value 
 
The fair values of assets and liabilities are determined using similar valuation techniques and assumptions as used 
in the audited annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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4 INVESTMENT SECURITIES AND UNIT LINKED ASSETS (continued) 
 
4.6 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) 
 
4.6.c Fair value of the Company's financial assets and unit linked liabilities that are measured at fair value on recurring basis 
 
Some of the Company’s financial assets and unit linked liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting year. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these 
financial assets and unit linked liabilities are determined: 
 Fair value as at

Fair value 
hierarchy 

 

Valuation techniques and key inputs 

 

Significant 
unobservable input 

 

Relationship of unobservable 
inputs to fair value   

31 December 
2021  

31 December 
2020 

AED’000   AED’000  
   (Restated)   
Financial assets measured at FVTPL            
Quoted equity securities 20,238  71,787 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market None Not applicable

Quoted bonds  16,450  22,118 Level 2 Quoted prices in secondary market None Not applicable

Unquoted equity securities 3,819  7,396 Level 3 
Based on net assets value of underlying 

investments  and last traded price in 2021 Yes
Increase in net asset value increases 

fair value

Investment in funds  7,364  5,083 Level 2 
 

Quoted prices in secondary market None Not applicable
      
Investments held on behalf of 
policyholders of unit linked products 
(Note 4.3) 231,059  175,590 Level 2 Quoted prices in secondary market None Not applicable
      
Due from reinsurers towards 
policyholders of unit linked products 
(Note 4.3) 124,474  88,984 Level 2 Quoted prices in secondary market None Not applicable
      
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI      
Quoted equity securities 17  6,587 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market None Not applicable

Unquoted equity securities -  300 Level 3      Net assets value Yes
Increase in net asset value increases 

fair value 
      
Financial liabilities measured at 
FVTPL 

 
 

   

Unit linked liabilities  355,533  264,574 Level 2 Quoted prices in secondary market None Not applicable
There were no transfers between levels or categories during the year. There are no other financial liabilities apart from the liabilities disclosed above which should be categorised under any of the 
levels in the above table. 
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4 INVESTMENT SECURITIES AND UNIT LINKED ASSETS (continued) 
 
4.6 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) 
 
4.6.c   Fair value of the Company's financial assets that are measured at fair value on recurring basis 
(continued) 
 
The treasury department of the Company has a team that performs the valuations of investment securities and unit 
linked assets required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 investments. This team reports directly to 
the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) and the investment committee (“IC”). Discussions regarding the valuation 
processes and the results are held between the CFO, IC and the valuation team on an annual basis. 
 
The main level 3 inputs used by the Company are derived and evaluated by taking into account the net assets values 
and last traded prices. 
 
5 STATUTORY DEPOSIT 
 
The statutory deposit of AED 10 million (31 December 2020: AED 10 million) is required to be placed by insurance 
companies operating in the U.A.E. with the designated national banks. This deposit has been pledged to the bank as 
security against a guarantee issued by the bank in favour of the CBUAE (formerly, the IA) for the same amount.  
 
Statutory deposits, which depend on the nature of insurance activities, cannot be withdrawn except with the prior 
approval of the CBUAE (formerly, the IA) in accordance with Article 42 of Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended 
and bear interest rates ranging between 0.6% and 0.68% per annum (31 December 2020: 1.15% and 1.6% per 
annum). 
 
6 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 
 
6.1  Cash and cash equivalents 
 
 As at  

31 December  
As at  

31 December  
 2021  2020  
 AED’000  AED’000  
   (Restated)  
     
Cash in hand 50  50  
Bank balances:     
Current accounts with banks 91,831  2,560  
Bank deposits with original maturities of three months or less -  2,532  
Cash and cash equivalents 91,881  5,142  
Less: Bank overdraft -  (584)  
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows 91,881  4,558  
     
In U.A.E. 91,302  3,870  
Outside U.A.E 579  688  
 91,881  4,558  
 
Bank deposits with original maturities of three months or less as at 31 December 2020 carried interest rate of 0.42% 
per annum. 
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6 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued) 
 
6.2 Bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months 
 
 As at  

31 December  
As at 

31 December 
 2021  2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 
   (Restated) 
    
Deposits with original maturities greater than three months 205,965  220,343
 
 
In U.A.E. 172,760  188,635 

Outside U.A.E.  33,205  31,708 

 205,965  220,343 
 
Bank deposits carried interest rates ranging from 0.15% to 8.5% per annum (31 December 2020: 0.68% to 8.5% per 
annum).  Bank deposits of AED 46.4 million (31 December 2020: AED 21 million) have been pledged as security 
against the overdraft facility which is to manage the liquidity position.  
 
The Company has obtained overdraft facilities from commercial banks in the UAE amounting to AED 28 million 
(31 December 2020: AED 13 million) which carry interest rates ranging from 0.5% to 1% per annum above the 
highest interest rate payable on fixed deposits under lien for the overdraft facility; or as varied by notice in writing 
received from the bank from time to time. Unused credit facilities amounted to AED 28 million (31 December 2020: 
AED 12.4 million). 
 
7 SHARE CAPITAL 
 
 As at 

31 December  
As at 

31 December 
 2021  2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 
Issued and fully paid 330,939,180 shares of AED 1 each 
  (31 December 2020: 330,939,180 share of AED 1 each) 330,939  330,939 
 
8 RESERVES 
 
NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES 
 
8.1 Statutory reserve 
 
In accordance with the UAE Commercial Companies Law and the Company’s Article of Association, the Company 
has resolved not to increase the statutory reserve above an amount equal to 50% of its paid up share capital. The 
Company transfers 10% of the profits for each year to the statutory reserve. The Company transferred AED 1,322 
thousand during the year ended 31 December 2021 and no transfers were made during the year ended 31 December  
2020 because the Company incurred losses during the year ended 31 December 2020. The reserve is not available 
for distribution except in the circumstances stipulated by the law.  
 
8.2 Special reserve 
 
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors may transfer 10% of annual net 
profits, if any, to a special reserve until an Ordinary General Meeting upon a proposal suspends it. The special 
reserve can be utilised for the purposes determined by the Ordinary General Meeting upon recommendations of the 
Board of Directors. The Company transferred AED 1,322 thousand during the year ended 31 December 2021 and 
no transfers were made during the year ended 31 December 2020 since the Company incurred losses. 
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8 RESERVES (continued) 
 
8.3 Fair value reserve 
 
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in fair value of financial assets designated as fair value 
through other comprehensive income. 
 
8.4 Reinsurance reserve 
 
In accordance with Article 34 of the Insurance Authority’s Board of Directors Decision No. (23) of 2019, the 
Company has transferred AED 2,619 thousand from ‘Accumulated losses’ to the ‘Reinsurance reserve’ being 0.5% 
of the total insurance premium ceded to reinsurers during the year ended 31 December 2021 (year ended 31 December 
2020: AED 2,266 thousand). The Company shall accumulate such provision period on period and shall not dispose 
of the reserve without the written approval of the assistant governor of the banking and insurance supervision 
department within the CBUAE.  
 
9 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Company, in the normal course of business, collects premiums, settles claims and enters into transactions with 
other business enterprises that fall within the definition of a related party as defined by International Accounting 
Standard 24. Related parties include the Company’s major Shareholders, Directors and businesses controlled by 
them and their families over which they exercise significant management influence as well as key management 
personnel. The Company’s management believes that the terms of such transactions are not significantly different 
from those that could have been obtained from third parties. 
 
At the end of the reporting year, amounts due from/(to) related parties which are included in the respective account 
balances are detailed below: 
 

 As at 
31 December  

As at 
31 December 

 2021  2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 
   (Restated) 
Balances with former major shareholder    
Premium receivables (Note 15) 26,508  26,173 
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Note 15) (26,310)  (26,173)
Net premium receivables 198  - 
 
Gross outstanding claims (included in claims reported unsettled) 444  3,130 
Investment properties reclassified to “Advance paid for purchase of real 
estate properties” 72,270  72,270 
Reversal of net fair value gains recorded in prior years (Note 27 a) (35,770)  (35,770) 
Advance paid for purchase of real estate properties (Note 15)* 36,500  36,500 
Provision on advance paid for purchase of real estate properties (Note 15 and 
note 27 a)*  (36,500)   (36,500) 

 -  - 
 
The amounts outstanding are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. No guarantees have been given to 
the related parties. 
 
* The amount under the advance paid for real estate properties (AED 36.5 million) was represented as Investment 
Properties with a carrying value in the books of AED 72.3 million in the audited financial statements for the year 
ended 31 December 2020. The said asset represents purchased assets from related parties during the years 2013 and 
2014. The purchased assets comprise a 60 residential-unit in a single building and a plot of land of 150,000 square 
feet with integrated infrastructure. For one of the assets, the agreement was entered in 2013 to purchase 150,000 
square feet of the land, which was reduced to 56,800 square feet and later amended to 78,900 square feet based on 
the instruction received from the former Chairman who was also the representative of the related party.  
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9 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS (continued) 
 
The counterparties (related parties) to the above transactions never fulfilled  their obligations to the Company (the 
Buyer), and as a result  the Company did not obtain the title deeds nor obtain possession of the said assets. This has  
resulted in the incorrect recognition of fair value gains of AED 35.8 million on investment properties in respect of 
which the Company never obtained possession or legal title, and the misappropriation of advances amounting to  
AED 36.5 million paid to a related party towards the acquisition of the investment properties. Accordingly, the 
Board of Directors of the Company decided to book a full provision (AED 72.3 million) against the said assets and 
proceed with legal action against all involved parties, to recover the Company's rights, in accordance with the 
resolution of Shareholders Assembly Meeting held on 30 September 2021. 
 
During the year, the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties: 
  For the year ended 31 December 
  2021  2020 
  AED’000  AED’000 
    (Restated) 
Transactions with former major shareholder     
Premiums written  1,299  1,780 
Claims paid  (897)  (1,015) 
     
Compensation of key management personnel     
Short-term benefits  (4,388)  (3,900) 
Long-term benefits  (200)  (200) 
 
Board of Directors’ fees 

 
(1,600)  (3,375) 

     
Board committee fees  -  (600) 
 
The Board of Directors’s fees for the year ended 31 December 2020 represents fees paid to the previous Board of 
Directors on which a recovery action has been initiated. 
 
10 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

 As at 31 
December 

2021  

As at 31 
December 

2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 
    
Letters of guarantee* 15,790  21,121 

 
*Includes AED 10 million (31 December 2020: AED 10 million) issued in favour of the CBUAE (formerly, the IA) 
(Note 5). 
 
The Company, in common with the majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. 
Based on independent legal advice, the Company considers that the outcome of the outstanding court cases will not 
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
 
11 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT  
 As at 31 

December  
As at 31 

December 
 2021  2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 

   (Restated) 
    
Operating assets (Note 11.1)  67,331    67,860  
Capital work in progress (Note 11.2) 3,115    12,061  
Property and equipment 70,446    79,921  
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11 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 
 
11.1 Operating assets 

 

Freehold 
land* 

Furniture 
and 

fixtures 

 Office 
equipmen

t 
 Motor 

vehicles 
 Computer 
equipment 

Total 
operating 

assets 
       

 
AED’00

0 
AED’00

0 AED’000 
AED’00

0 AED’000 
AED’00

0 
       
Cost:       
 At 1 January 2020 (as previously 
reported)  83,901 15,686 2,670 872 9,325  112,454  
Prior year adjustment (Note 27 b)  (22,834)  -    -    -    -    (22,834) 
 At 1 January 2020 (Restated)  61,067   15,686   2,670   872   9,325   89,620  
Additions  -    540   55   -    373   968  
At 31 December 2020 (Restated)  61,067   16,226   2,725   872   9,698   90,588  
Additions  -    727  81  -   183 991 
Disposals  -    -    -    (50)  -    (50) 
At 31 December 2021    61,067   16,953    2,806  822    9,881 91,529 
       
Accumulated Depreciation         
At 1 January 2020   -    9,798   2,446   464   8,546   21,254  
Charge for the year  -    913   100   149   312   1,474  
At 31 December 2020   -    10,711   2,546   613   8,858   22,728  
Charge for the year    -     968   83 138 331   1,520 
Disposals  -    -    -    (50)  -    (50) 
At 31 December 2021   -     11,679 2,629 701  9,189  24,198 
       
 Carrying amounts:       
At 31 December 2020   (Restated)  61,067   5,515   179   259   840   67,860  
       
At 31 December 2021   61,067  5,274  177    121    692    67,331 

 
*During 2018, development work in progress which represent payments made for acquiring investment in the 
Meydan Real Estate Project based in UAE with a carrying value of AED 82,045 thousand (“freehold land”) was 
transferred to operating assets. In 2019, the ownership and the title deed were transferred in the name of the 
Company. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company restated the value of the freehold land to AED 
59,210 thousand (Refer note 27 b for the restatement in regards to the carrying amount of the freehold land) . 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has passed a resolution to construct the Company's head-office on the 
freehold land. The freehold land is carried at cost.  
 
11.2 Capital work in progress 
 

 

As at 31 
December 

 As at 31 
December 

 2021  2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 
 

   
At 1 January 12,061         10,384  
Additions 1,832            1,902  
Write offs during the year  (2,387)  - 
Reversals during the year (3,359)  - 
Transfers during the year (5,032)   (225)  
At 31 December  3,115          12,061  

 
 



Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 
2021 (continued) 
 

43 

12 PAYABLES TO POLICYHOLDERS OF UNIT LINKED PRODUCTS 
 
The Company issues unit linked policies which have both insurance risk and investment components. The 
investment portion is invested on behalf of the policyholders as disclosed in note 4.3 of these financial statements. 
 
Movement during the year:  
 As at 31 

December  
As at 31 

December 
 2021  2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 

   (Restated) 
    
As at 1 January  286,798   192,438 

Purchase  108,368    108,089  
Sales  (58,521)   (23,842) 
Other charges  (2,436)   (7,150) 
Change in fair value of the unit linked products  34,678    17,263  
  368,887    286,798  
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13 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS 
 

 

As at  
31 December 

2021  

As at 
 31 December 

2020 

 AED’000  AED’000 
   (Restated) 
    
Gross insurance contract liabilities    
Claims reported unsettled  579,170    245,666  
Claims incurred but not reported  100,358    117,418  
Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve  6,974    4,095  
Unexpired risk reserve  8,048    2,181  
Third party recoveries  3,544    3,620  
Mathematical reserve  139,040    107,721  
Unearned premiums  253,786    245,387  
Provision for default claims and refunds  14,329    14,329  

Gross insurance contract liabilities 1,105,249  740,417 
    
 
Reinsurance contract assets    
Claims reported unsettled  (506,533)  (188,746) 
Claims incurred but not reported  (65,379)  (71,603) 
Unexpired risk reserve  2,672   7,804 
Third party recoveries  (8,163)  (10,212) 
Mathematical reserve  (119,373)  (92,932) 
Unearned premiums  (134,738)  (132,576) 
Total reinsurance contract assets   (831,514)  (488,265) 

    
Net    
Claims reported unsettled  72,637    56,920  
Claims incurred but not reported  34,979    45,815  
Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve  6,974    4,095  
Unexpired risk reserve  10,720    9,985  
Third party recoveries  (4,619)   (6,592) 
Mathematical reserve  19,667    14,789  
Unearned premiums  119,048    112,811  
Provision for default claims and refunds  14,329    14,329  

Net insurance contract liabilities  273,735    252,152  

    
The gross and net insurance contract liabilities of AED 1,079,213 thousand and AED 259,406 thousand respectively 
as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: AED 712,256 thousand and AED 237,823 thousand respectively) 
were certified by the Company’s external appointed actuary. The difference in actuarial certification and the above 
amounts is on account of provision for default claims and refunds, third party recoveries against outstanding claims 
and paid claims. The changes in the methodologies and assumptions are detailed in note 25.1.4 of the financial 
statements. Actuarial estimation of the insurance liabilities has been performed by an independent actuary in 
accordance with the requirement of new financial regulations issued under Federal Law No.6 of 2007, as amended, 
pertaining to the insurance companies and agents. Estimates are made for the expected ultimate cost of claims 
incurred but not yet reported at the reporting date (IBNR) using a range of standard actuarial claim projection 
techniques, based on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse deviation. 
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13 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 
 
13.1 Gross and net claims incurred 
 

  For the year ended 31 December 
  General  Life  Total  
  2021 2020  2021 2020  2021 2020 
  AED’000 AED’000  AED’000 AED’000  AED’000 AED’000 

         (Restated) 
Gross claims incurred          
Claims settled during the year   (271,836)  (297,752)   (88,190)  (57,703)   (360,026)  (355,455) 
Movement in claims reported unsettled   (308,642)  26,454    (24,862)  (8,967)   (333,504)  17,487  
Movement in claims incurred but not reported   17,904   6,733    (844)  (5,024)   17,060   1,709  
Movement in unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve   (2,181)  352    (698)  (192)   (2,879)  160  
Movement in unexpired risk reserve   1,405   (1,734)   (7,272)  662    (5,867)  (1,072) 
Movement in third party recoveries   76   602    -    -     76   602  
   (563,274)  (265,345)   (121,866)  (71,224)   (685,140)  (336,569) 
          
Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers          
Reinsurance share of claims settled during the year   143,768   184,607    74,843   50,043    218,611   234,650  
Movement in reinsurance share of claims reported unsettled   294,310   (39,009)   23,477   8,014    317,787   (30,995) 
Movement in reinsurance share of claims incurred but not 
reported 

 
 (6,950)  1,587    726   5,303    (6,224)  6,890  

Movement in reinsurance share of unexpired risk reserve   (2,140)  2,116    7,272   (347)   5,132   1,769  
Movement in reinsurance share of third party recoveries   (2,049)  (6,109)      (2,049)  (6,109) 
   426,939   143,192    106,318   63,013    533,257   206,205  
          
Net claims incurred   (136,335)  (122,153)   (15,548)  (8,211)   (151,883)  (130,364) 
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13 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 
 
13.2 Development claim tables 
 
The development of insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Company’s ability to estimate the ultimate value of claims. The top half of each table illustrates how the 
Company’s estimate of total claims reported unsettled and claims incurred but not reported for each accident year has changed at successive year-ends. The bottom half of the 
table reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount appearing in the statement of financial position. The following tables illustrate the Company’s estimate of total claims 
reported unsettled and claims incurred but not reported for the years from Prior to 2015 to 2021. 
 
Gross incurred claims 
 
Accident year 2015 and prior 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Total 

 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 

         

At the end of each reporting 
year  262,024   465,877   521,591   488,199   452,906   432,109   738,020   3,360,726  
One year later  422,401   455,472   525,694   461,093   404,673   404,753   -    2,674,086  
Two years later  430,742   449,009   542,901   438,368   391,182   -    -    2,252,202  
Three years later  434,680   451,401   525,402   427,437   -    -    -    1,838,920  
Four years later  395,487   448,419   526,553   -    -    -    -    1,370,459  
Five years later  386,245   444,834   -    -    -    -    -    831,079  
Six years later  379,528   -    -    -    -    -    -    379,528  
Estimate of cumulative 
claims   379,528   444,834   526,553   427,437   391,182   404,753   738,020  3,312,307 
 
Cumulative payments to date (373,172)  (436,038)  (494,548)  (419,300) (364,476)  (314,041) (243,327) (2,644,902) 

2014 and prior - - - - - - - 3,960 
TP recoveries against paid 
claims 120   441  713 246 214 575 5,854  8,163  
Total gross reserves included 
in the statement of financial 
position 6,356   9,237   32,718   8,383   26,920   91,287   500,547  679,528 
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13 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 
 
13.2 Development claim tables (continued)    
 
Net incurred claims 
 
Accident year 2015 and prior 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Total 

 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 

         

At the end of each reporting 
year  141,189   202,147   242,311   198,735   176,266   145,162   171,164   1,276,974  
One year later  169,337   219,345   257,480   192,418   165,556   132,443   -    1,136,579  
Two years later  178,575   224,991   259,920   188,247   159,668   -    -    1,011,401  
Three years later  183,377   226,115   256,282   186,144   -    -    -    851,918  
Four years later  185,143   225,336   257,054   -    -    -    -    667,533  
Five years later  185,365   225,554   -    -    -    -    -    410,919  
Six years later  185,409   -    -    -    -    -    -    185,409  
Estimate of cumulative 
claims  185,409   225,554   257,054   186,144   159,668   132,443   171,164   1,317,436  
 
Cumulative payments to date  (182,970)   (222,969)  (251,106)  (182,354)  (155,206)  (116,254) (105,664) (1,216,523)  

2014 and prior - - - - - - -  2,084  
TP recoveries against paid 
claims 120  441 709 206 128 291 2,724  4,619  
Total net reserves included in 
the statement of financial 
position  2,559   3,026   6,657   3,996   4,590   16,480   68,224   107,616  
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13 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 
 

13.3  Movement of claims reported unsettled, claims incurred but not reported and loss adjustment expenses 
 

 
2021 

AED’000  
2020 

AED’000 

 Gross  
Reinsurers’ 

share  Net  Gross  
Reinsurers’ 

share  Net 

            

Claims reported unsettled  245,666    (188,746)   56,920    263,153    (219,741)   43,412  

Claims incurred but not reported  117,418    (71,603)   45,815    119,127    (64,713)   54,414  

Total at the beginning of the year  363,084    (260,349)   102,735    382,280    (284,454)   97,826  

Cash paid for claims settled during the year (Note 13.1)  (360,026)   218,611   (141,415)   (355,455)   234,650    (120,805) 
Changes in liabilities:                  

Arising from current year claims  738,020    (566,856)   171,164    432,128    (286,961)   145,167  

Arising from prior year claims  (61,550)   36,682   (24,868)   (95,869)   76,416    (19,453) 
Total at the end of the year  679,528    (571,912)   107,616    363,084    (260,349)   102,735  
                
Claims reported unsettled  579,170    (506,533)   72,637    245,666    (188,746)   56,920  
Claims incurred but not reported  100,358    (65,379)   34,979    117,418    (71,603)   45,815  
Total at the end of the year  679,528    (571,912)   107,616    363,084    (260,349)   102,735  
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13 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 
 
13.4  Unearned premiums 
 
Movement of unearned premiums during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 was as follows: 
 

 For the year ended 31 December 
 Gross Reinsurers’ share Net 

 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 
 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
       
At the beginning of the year  245,387   279,970   (132,576)  (161,320)  112,811   118,650  
Premiums written during the year (Note 21)  900,083   867,911   (523,839)  (496,553)  376,244   371,358  
Premiums earned during the year  (891,684)  (902,494)  521,677   525,297  (370,007)  (377,197) 

At the end of the year  253,786   245,387   (134,738)  (132,576)  119,048   112,811  
 
13.5  Unexpired risk reserve 
 
Movement of unexpired risk reserve during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 was as follows: 
 

 For the year ended 31 December 
 Gross Reinsurers’ share Net 
 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020  

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
       

At the beginning of the year  2,181   1,109  7,804   9,573   9,985   10,682  

Additions during the year  5,867   1,072  - -  5,867   1,072  
Releases during the year - -  (5,132)  (1,769)  (5,132)  (1,769) 

At the end of the year  8,048   2,181   2,672   7,804   10,720   9,985  
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13 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 
 
13.6  Mathematical reserves 

 
Movement of mathematical reserves during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 was as follows: 
 

 For the year ended 31 December 
 Gross Reinsurers’ share Net 

 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020  
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 

       

At the beginning of the year  107,721   98,671   (92,932)  (86,286)  14,789   12,385  

New business  48,351   44,288   (41,777)  (38,783)  6,574   5,505  

Other increases  4,514   4,135   (3,213)  (3,045)  1,301   1,090  

Deaths/maturities/surrenders  (1,478)  (1,354)  1,047   993   (431)  (361) 

Other releases  (20,068)  (38,019)  17,502   34,189   (2,566)  (3,830) 

At the end of the year  139,040   107,721   (119,373)  (92,932)  19,667   14,789  
 

13.7  Third party recoveries 
 
Movement of third party recoveries during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 was as follows: 

 
 

 For the year ended 31 December 
 Gross Reinsurers’ share Net 
 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020  

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
       

At the beginning of the year  3,620   4,222   (10,212)  (16,321)  (6,592)  (12,099) 

Additions during the year  3,262   3,038   (6,131)  (6,229)  (2,869)  (3,191) 
Releases during the year  (3,338)  (3,640)  8,180   12,338   4,842   8,698  

At the end of the year  3,544   3,620   (8,163)  (10,212)  (4,619)  (6,592) 
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13 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 
 
13.8 Provision for default claims and refunds 
 
Movement of Provision for default claims and refunds during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 was as follows: 

 
 For the year ended 31 December 
 Gross Reinsurers’ share Net 
 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020  

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
       

At the beginning of the year  14,329   14,329   -    -    14,329   14,329  

Additions during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Releases during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   

At the end of the year  14,329   14,329   -    -    14,329   14,329  
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13 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 
 
13.9 Sensitivity Table 
 
The following table presents the sensitivity of the value of insurance contract liabilities disclosed in this note to movements in the assumptions used in the estimation of 
insurance contract liabilities. For liabilities under long-term insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms, changes in assumptions will not cause a change to the amount 
of the liability, unless the change is severe enough to trigger a liability adequacy test adjustment. No losses arose in either 2021 or 2020, based on the results of the liability 
adequacy test. The table below indicates the level of the respective variable that will trigger an adjustment and then indicates the liability adjustment required as a result of a 
further deterioration in the variable. 
 
The below table illustrates sensitivity details for liabilities under life insurance contracts. 
 

OVERALL SENSITIVITY OF NET RESULTS 

Technical provisions category 

AED ‘000 

Pessimistic Best Optimistic 

Estimate Estimate Estimate 

Mortality assumption 21,825 19,667 17,476 

Discount rate assumption 20,094 19,667 18,970 

Expense assumption 19,720 19,667 19,448 

Expense inflation assumption 19,734 19,667 19,444 

    

Sensitivities  
Pessimistic Best Optimistic 

Estimate Estimate Estimate 

Mortality assumption  increase mortality rates by 10%   BE Mortality   decrease mortality rates by 10%  

Discount rate assumption  increase discount rates by 0.5%   BE discount rate   decrease discount rates by 0.5%  

Expense assumption  increase expenses by 10%   BE expenses   decrease expenses by 10%  

Expense inflation assumption  increase inflation by 0.5%   BE expense inflation   decrease inflation by 0.5%  

 
There were no changes in the assumptions for mathematical reserves for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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14 SEGMENT INFORMATION 
 
Identification of reportable segments 
 
Primary segment information 
For management purposes, the Company is organised into business units based on its products and services and has two reportable operating segments as follows: 
1. The general insurance segment, comprises motor, medical, marine, fire, property, liability, engineering and general accident. 
2. The life segment includes group life, credit life and individual life. 
 
These segments are the basis on which the Company reports its primary segment information to the Chief Operating Decision Maker. There are no transactions between the 
business segments. 
 
Segment results 
 General insurance  Life insurance  Total 
 2021  2020  2021  2020  2021  2020 
 AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000 
   (Restated)    (Restated)    (Restated) 
UNDERWRITING INCOME             
Gross written premium  655,993    585,277    244,090    282,634    900,083    867,911  
Reinsurance premiums ceded   (394,091)   (351,550)   (129,748)   (145,003)   (523,839)   (496,553) 
Net retained premium  261,902    233,727    114,342    137,631    376,244    371,358  
Net change in unearned premium, mathematical reserve and            
  policyholders' reserve  (6,299)   3,835    (104,950)   (67,330)   (111,249)   (63,495) 
Net earned premium  255,603    237,562    9,392    70,301    264,995    307,863  
Gross commission earned  74,032    66,367    17,982    11,282    92,014    77,649  
Total underwriting income  329,635    303,929    27,374    81,583    357,009    385,512  
            
UNDERWRITING EXPENSES            
Net claims incurred  (136,335)   (122,152)   (15,548)   (8,212)   (151,883)   (130,364) 
Commission incurred  (65,803)   (53,179)   (25,259)   (52,720)   (91,062)   (105,899) 
Administrative expenses  (61,831)   (61,941)   (29,053)   (33,077)   (90,884)   (95,018) 
Other operational costs related to underwriting activities  (30,665)   (32,662)   (7,741)   (14,070)   (38,406)   (46,732) 
Net movement in fair value of investments held for            
  unit linked products  -     -     34,678    17,263    34,678    17,263  
Total underwriting expenses  (294,634)   (269,934)   (42,923)   (90,816)   (337,557)   (360,750) 
Total underwriting (loss)/ income  35,001    33,995    (15,549)   (9,233)   19,452    24,762  
Net investment loss          5,429    (2,052) 
Provision for doubtful debts          (10,062)   (23,271) 
Board of directors’ remuneration          (1,600)   (3,375) 
Profit/ (loss) for the year         13,219   (3,936) 
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14 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Segment assets and liabilities 
 

General insurance  Life insurance  Total 
 As at 31 

December  
As at 31 

December  
As at 31 

December  
As at 31 

December  
As at 31 

December  
As at 31 

December 
 2021  2020  2021  2020  2021  2020 
 AED’000   AED’000   AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000 
   (Restated)    (Restated)    (Restated) 
ASSETS            
Property and equipment  52,835    59,940    17,611    19,981    70,446    79,921  
Intangible assets  5,198    4,240    9,376    12,521    14,574    16,761  
Statutory deposit  6,000    6,000    4,000    4,000    10,000    10,000  
Right-of-use assets  478    2,699    159    900    637    3,599  
Investments securities  35,066    84,996    12,822    28,275    47,888    113,271  
Unit linked assets  -     -     368,887    286,798    368,887    286,798  
Reinsurance contract assets  629,558    344,363    201,956    143,902    831,514    488,265  
Bank deposits with original maturities of more than three 

months  113,086    129,324    92,879    91,019    205,965    220,343  
Insurance and other receivables  277,410    301,245    78,792    100,252    356,202    401,497  
Cash and cash equivalents  68,911    3,856    22,970    1,286    91,881    5,142  
Total assets  1,188,542    936,663    809,452    688,934    1,997,994    1,625,597  
            
LIABILITIES 

           
Provision for employees‘ end of service benefits  9,655    8,221    3,218    2,741    12,873    10,962  
Insurance contract liabilities  858,287    558,527    246,962    181,890    1,105,249    740,417  
Insurance and other payables  218,479    292,718    57,021    72,074    275,500    364,792  
Payables to policyholders of unit linked products  -     -     368,887    286,798    368,887    286,798  
Bank overdraft  -     584    -     -     -     584  
Total liabilities  1,086,421    860,050    676,088    543,503    1,762,509    1,403,553  
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14 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) 
 General insurance  Life insurance  Total 
 As at 31 

December  
As at 31 

December  
As at 31 

December  
As at 31 

December  
As at 31 

December  
As at 31 

December 
 2021  2020  2021  2020  2021  2020 
 AED’000   AED’000   AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000 

  (Restated)    (Restated)    (Restated) 
            
EQUITY   

 
 

 
 

      
Share capital  230,939    230,939    100,000    100,000    330,939    330,939  
Statutory reserve  16,187    14,865    -     -     16,187    14,865  
Special reserve  16,187    14,865    -     -     16,187    14,865  
Reinsurance reserve  3,728    1,758    1,157    508    4,885    2,266  
Fair value reserve  1,590    (6,982)   (1,434)   (4,292)   156    (11,274) 
Accumulated losses  (166,510)   (178,832)   33,641    49,215    (132,869)   (129,617) 
Total equity  102,121    76,613    133,364    145,431    235,485    222,044  
Total liabilities and equity  1,188,542    936,663    809,452    688,934    1,997,994    1,625,597  

 
 
The table presents the geographical distribution of gross written premiums 
 
       For the year ended 31 December      
 2021  2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 
    
United Arab Emirates  753,672    747,149  
GCC  145,038    119,382  
Others  1,373    1,380  
  900,083    867,911  
 
The geographical segment disclosure is not applicable for non current assets. The Company does not have reliance on any single customer for generating revenue.
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15 INSURANCE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 

As at  
31 December 

2021 

 As at  
31 December 

2020 

 AED’000  AED’000 
   (Restated) 
    
Due from policyholders and brokers  280,295    295,225  
Due from insurance companies  22,595    24,722  
Due from reinsurance companies  23,422    26,555  
Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokers, insurance 
and reinsurance companies)   (34,499) 

 
 (24,849) 

Due from related parties (Note 9)  26,508    26,173  
Provision for doubtful debts – (Due from related parties) (Note 9)  (26,310)   (26,173) 

  292,011    321,653  
Other receivables  38,946    54,582  
Provision for doubtful debts (Note 13.1)  (271)   -   
Advance paid for purchase of real estate properties (Note 9)*  36,500    36,500  
Provision on advance paid for purchase of real estate properties (Note 9)*  (36,500)   (36,500) 
Deferred acquisition cost (Note 15.2)  19,061    20,829  
Prepaid expenses  6,455    4,433  
  356,202    401,497  

 

 

As at  
31 December 

2021 

 As at  
31 December 

2020 

 AED’000  AED’000 
   (Restated) 
Inside UAE    
Due from policyholders and brokers  224,634    226,408  

Due from insurance companies  22,595    24,722  

Due from reinsurance companies  2,802    5,670  
Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokers, insurance 
and reinsurance companies)   (22,578) 

 
 (18,175) 

Due from related parties (Note 9)  26,508    26,173  
Provision for doubtful debts – (Due from related parties) (Note 9)  (26,310)   (26,173) 

  227,651    238,625  
Other receivables  38,946    54,582  
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Note 13.1)  (271)   -   
Advance paid for purchase of real estate properties (Note 9)*  36,500    36,500  
Provision on advance paid for purchase of real estate properties (Note 
9)*  (36,500) 

 
 (36,500) 

Deferred acquisition cost (Note 15.2)  19,061    20,829  
Prepaid expenses  6,455    4,433  

  291,842    318,469  
    

 

As at  
31 December 

2021 

 As at  
31 December 

2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 
   (Restated) 
Outside UAE    
Due from policyholders and brokers 55,661    68,817   
Due from reinsurance companies  20,620   20,885 
Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokers, insurance 
and reinsurance companies)   (11,921)  (6,674) 
  64,360    83,028  
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15 INSURANCE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 
 
* The amount under the advance paid for real estate properties (AED 36.5 million) was represented as Investment 
Properties with a carrying value in the books of AED 72.3 million in the audited financials for the year ended 31 
December 2020. The said asset represent a purchased assets from related parties during the years 2013 and 2014. The 
purchased assets comprise a 60 residential-unit in a single building and a plot of land of 150,000 square feet with 
integrated infrastructure. For one of the assets, the agreement was entered in 2013 to purchase 150,000 square feet of 
the land, which was reduced to 56,800 square feet and later amended to 78,900 square feet based on the instruction 
from the former Chairman who was also the representative of the related party. The counterparties (related parties) to 
the above transactions never fulfilled  their obligations to the Company (the Buyer), and as a result  the Company did 
not obtain the title deeds nor obtain possession of the said asset. This has resulted in the incorrect recognition of fair 
value gains of AED 35.8 million on investment properties in respect of which the Company never obtained possession 
or legal title, and the misappropriation of advances amounting to AED 36.5 million paid to a related party towards the 
acquisition of the investment properties. Accordingly, the Board of the Company decided to book a full provision 
(AED 72.3 million) against the said assets and proceed with legal action against all involved parties, to recover 
Company's rights, in accordance with the resolution of Shareholders Assembly Meeting held on 30 September 2021.  
 
15.1  Provision for doubtful debts 

 
As at  

31 December 
2021 

 As at  
31 December 

2020 

 AED’000  AED’000 
    
    
Balance at the beginning of the year  51,022    27,758  
Provision during the year  10,062    23,271  
Write off during the year  (4)  (7)   
Balance at the end of the year  61,080    51,022  
    

 
15.2 Deferred acquisition costs 

 

As at  
31 December 

2021 

 As at  
31 December 

2020 

 AED’000  AED’000 
   (Restated) 

    
Balance at the beginning of the year 20,829   22,392  
Commission paid during the year  89,294    104,336  
Commission incurred during the year  (91,062)   (105,899) 
Balance at the end of the year 19,061   20,829  
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15 INSURANCE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 
 
15.3 Aging of total insurance and reinsurance receivables 
 
15.3 .1 Aging of insurance and reinsurance receivables – Total 
 

As at 31 December 2021       
 Past Due by Number of Days 
 Not Yet Due < 30 days  30 -90 days  91 -180 days 181-365 days > 365 days Total 
 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
        
Due from policyholders and brokers  90,611   29,589   51,805   46,116   18,306   43,868   280,295  
Due from insurance companies 1,382 1,128 1,015 1,739 2,756 14,575 22,595 
Due from reinsurance companies 4,308 911 319 2,309 1,625 13,950 23,422 
Total   96,301   31,628   53,139   50,164   22,687   72,393   326,312  
Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokers, insurance and 
reinsurance companies)   (114)  (57)  (193)  (55)  (215)  (33,865)  (34,499) 
Due from related parties (Note 9)  3   82     -      36   70   26,317   26,508  
Provision for due from related parties    -     -     -     -     -    (26,310)  (26,310) 
TOTAL  96,190   31,653   52,946   50,145   22,542   38,535   292,011  

 
 

As at 31 December 2020       
 Past Due by Number of Days 
 Not Yet Due < 30 days  30 -90 days  91 -180 days 181-365 days > 365 days Total 
 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
        
Due from policyholders and brokers 103,019 34,007 26,865 45,359 25,798 60,177 295,225 
Due from insurance companies 2,582 1,667 1,105 1,753 5,646 11,969 24,722 
Due from reinsurance companies 6,035 1,033 2,021 735 1,902 14,829 26,555 
Total   111,636   36,707   29,991   47,847   33,346   86,975   346,502  
Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokers, insurance and 
reinsurance companies)   -   -   -   -   -   (24,849)  (24,849) 
Due from related parties (Note 9)  113   4   61   134   258   25,603   26,173  
Provision for due from related parties  (113)  (4)  (61)  (134)  (258)  (25,603)  (26,173) 
TOTAL  111,636   36,707   29,991   47,847   33,346   62,126   321,653  
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15 INSURANCE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 
 
15.3 Aging of total insurance and reinsurance receivables (continued) 
 
15.3.2 Aging of insurance and reinsurance receivables - Inside UAE 
 

As at 31 December 2021       
 Past Due by Number of Days 
 Not Yet Due < 30 days  30 -90 days  91 -180 days 181-365 days > 365 days Total 
 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
        
Due from policyholders and brokers  86,022   13,697   36,686   31,888   14,365   41,976   224,634  
Due from insurance companies  1,382   1,128   1,015   1,739   2,756   14,575   22,595  
Due from reinsurance companies  50   50   11   -    441   2,250   2,802  
Total   87,454   14,875   37,712   33,627   17,562   58,801   250,031  
Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokers, insurance and 
reinsurance companies)   (70)  (38)  (150)  (17)  (148)  (22,155)  (22,578) 
Due from related parties (Note 9)  3   82    -     36   70   26,317   26,508  
Provision for due from related parties   -      -      -      -      -     (26,310)  (26,310) 
TOTAL  87,387   14,919   37,562   33,646   17,484   36,653   227,651  

 
As at 31 December 2020       
 Past Due by Number of Days 
 Not Yet Due < 30 days  30 -90 days  91 -180 days 181-365 days > 365 days Total 
 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
        
Due from policyholders and brokers  74,255   26,766   19,302   39,879   24,658   41,548   226,408  
Due from insurance companies  2,582   1,667   1,105   1,753   5,646   11,969   24,722  
Due from reinsurance companies  2,028   359   371   68   291   2,553   5,670  
Total   78,865   28,792   20,778   41,700   30,595   56,070   256,800  
Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokers, insurance and 
reinsurance companies)   -    -    -    -    -    (18,175)  (18,175) 
Due from related parties (Note 9)  113   4   61   134   258   25,603   26,173  
Provision for due from related party  (113)  (4)  (61)  (134)  (258)  (25,603)  (26,173) 
TOTAL  78,865   28,792   20,778   41,700   30,595   37,895   238,625  
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15 INSURANCE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 
 
15.3 Aging of total insurance and reinsurance receivables (continued) 
 
15.3.3 Aging of insurance and reinsurance receivables - Outside UAE 
 
 

As at 31 December 2021       
 Past Due by Number of Days 
 Not Yet Due < 30 days  30 -90 days  91 -180 days 181-365 days > 365 days Total 
 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
        
Due from policyholders and brokers  4,589   15,892   15,118   14,229   3,941   1,892   55,661  
Due from insurance companies  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Due from reinsurance companies  4,258   861   308   2,309   1,184   11,700   20,620  
Total   8,847   16,753   15,426   16,538   5,125   13,592   76,281  
Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokers, insurance and 
reinsurance companies)   (43)  (19)  (43)  (38)  (68)  (11,710)  (11,921) 
TOTAL  8,804   16,734   15,383   16,500   5,057   1,882   64,360  

 
 

As at 31 December 2020       
 Past Due by Number of Days 
 Not Yet Due < 30 days  30 -90 days  91 -180 days 181-365 days > 365 days Total 
 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
        
Due from policyholders and brokers  28,764   7,241   7,563   5,480   1,140   18,629   68,817  
Due from insurance companies  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Due from reinsurance companies  4,007   674   1,650   666   1,611   12,277   20,885  
Total   32,771   7,915   9,213   6,146   2,751   30,906   89,702  
Provision for doubtful debts (due from policyholders, brokers, insurance and 
reinsurance companies)   -   -   -   -   -   (6,674)  (6,674) 
TOTAL  32,771   7,915   9,213   6,146   2,751   24,232   83,028  
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15 INSURANCE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 
 
Insurance receivables and due from reinsurance companies are summarised as follows. 
 

As at 31 December 2021 
 

 

 

Neither past 
due nor 

impaired 

Past due but 
not impaired 

Past due 
and 

impaired 
Total 

  AED’000   AED’000   AED’000   AED’000  
     
Due from policyholders and brokers  90,611   165,012   24,672   280,295  
Due from insurance companies  1,382   21,213   -    22,595  
Due from reinsurance companies  4,308   9,287   9,827   23,422  
Due from related parties (Note 9)  3   195   26,310   26,508  
Total  96,304   195,707   60,809   352,820  

 
 

As at 31 December 2020  
 

 
Neither past due 

nor impaired 
Past due but 
not impaired 

Past due and 
impaired 

Total 

  AED’000   AED’000   AED’000   AED’000  
Due from policyholders and brokers 
(Restated)  103,019   174,032   18,174   295,225  
Due from insurance companies  2,582   22,140   -    24,722  
Due from reinsurance companies  6,035   13,846   6,674   26,555  
Due from related parties (Note 9)  -    -    26,173   26,173  
Total  111,636   210,018   51,021   372,675  

 
16   INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 

 
Licensed 

know-how fee Software Total 

 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
    
Cost:    
At 1 January 2020 (As previously reported)  - 16,906 16,906 
Prior year adjustment (note 27 g) 19,108 - 19,108 
At 1 January 2020  (Restated) 19,108 16,906 36,014 
Additions  -   53 53 
At 31 December 2020  (Restated)  19,108   16,959   36,067  
Additions  -    4,199   4,199  
At 31 December 2021   19,108   21,158   40,266  
    
Accumulated Amortisation 

   

At 1 January 2020 (As previously reported)  - 8,677 8,677 
Prior year adjustment (note 27 g) 4,000 - 4,000 
At 1 January 2020 (Restated) 4,000 8,677 12,677 
Charge for the year 4,000 2,629 6,629 
At 31 December 2020  8,000 11,306 19,306 
Charge for the year 3,464 2,922 6,386 
At 31 December 2021  11,464 14,228 25,692 
    
 Carrying amounts:   

 

At 31 December 2020   (Restated)  11,108  5,653  16,761  
   

 

At 31 December 2021  7,644 6,930 14,574 
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16   INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 
 
The Company had paid non refundable license fee in the year 2018 to utilise and access to know how of the customers 
of a bank. 
 
Intangible assets include internally generated software amounting to AED 11,143 thousand  (31 December 2020 : 
AED 11,143 thousand) and accumulated amortisation of AED 8,500 thousand (31 December 2020: AED 6,501 
thousand). During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no additions or deletions to the internally 
generated software. 
 
17 INSURANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 

 
As at 

31 December 
2021 

 As at  
31 

December 
2020 

 AED’000  AED’000 
   (Restated) 
 

   
Trade payables 76,039  125,694 
Due to insurance and reinsurance companies 121,457  142,669 
Reinsurance premium reserve held 28,906  29,615 

 226,402  297,978 
Other payables:    
Unclaimed dividends 1,998  2,044 
Accrued expenses and other payables 47,068  62,122 
Lease liabilities (Note 22) 32  2,648 
 275,500  364,792 
    

 
18 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
 

  For the year ended  31 December 
  2021  2020 
  AED’000  AED’000 
    (Restated) 
     
Staff costs (Note 18.1)  61,310   62,598  
Depreciation and amortization  10,868   12,184  
Maintenance charges  5,262   2,074  
Telephone and communications  3,098   3,126  
Rent on short term leases  2,002  2,851 
Others  8,344    12,185 
  90,884   95,018  

18.1 Staff costs 
     For the year ended  31 December       
 2021  2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 
   (Restated) 
    
Salaries and allowances  47,825   51,315 
Employees’ end of service benefits (Note 23)  3,081   3,607 
Staff insurance  3,229   3,997 
Other staff benefits  7,175   3,679 
  61,310   62,598 
Average number of employees at 31 December 244  266 
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18 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (continued) 
 
18.2 The commitment for short term leases 
 
The commitment for short term leases amount to AED 1,611 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2021 (31 
December 2020: AED 3,027 thousand). 
 
19          OTHER OPERATIONAL EXPENSES RELATING TO UNDERWRITING ACTIVITIES 
 

 For the year ended 31 December 

 2021  2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 

 
  (Restated) 

    
Producer salaries and incentive  26,924   29,274 
Third party administration fees  9,186   9,618 
Other expenses 2,296    7,840 
   38,406  46,732 

 
20 NET INVESTMENT INCOME / (LOSS ) 
 

 

                                                                                                            For the year ended 31 December 
  2021  2020 
  AED’000  AED’000 

    (Restated) 
     
Interest income  6,530  8,054 
Other investment income/(loss):     
Dividend income   527   742 
Realised gains on sale of investments at FVTPL  2,917  852 
Unrealised loss on investments at FVTPL    (978)   (9,805) 
Investment management expenses   (3,394)  (1,662) 
Others   (173)    (233)  
Other investment loss  (1,101)  (10,106) 
Net investment income / (loss)  5,429  (2,052) 
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21 NET INSURANCE PREMIUM REVENUE 
 

 

Insurance contracts premium includes AED 23,279 thousand (31 December 2020: AED 18,753 thousand) of reinsurance premium accepted.

  
 General  Life  Total 

 2021 2020  2021 2020  2021 2020 
 AED’000 AED’000  AED’000 AED’000  AED’000 AED’000 

  (Restated)   (Restated)   (Restated) 
       

  
Gross written premiums         
Gross written premiums  655,993   585,277    244,090   282,634    900,083   867,911  
Change in unearned premiums (Note 13.5)  (8,324)  34,906    (75)  (322)   (8,399)  34,584  
Change in mathematical reserve (Note 13.7)  -    -     (31,319)  (9,051)   (31,319)  (9,051) 
Amount invested by policyholders  -    -     (107,928)  (92,995)   (107,928)  (92,995) 
Movement in reserve for unit linked products  -    -     (34,678)  (17,263)   (34,678)  (17,263) 
  647,669   620,183    70,090   163,003    717,759   783,186  
Reinsurance premiums ceded         
Reinsurance premiums ceded  (394,091)  (351,550)   (129,748)  (145,003)   (523,839)  (496,553) 
Change in unearned premiums (Note 13.5)  2,024   (31,071)   138   2,329    2,162   (28,742) 
Change in mathematical reserve (Note 13.7)  -    -     26,441   6,646    26,441   6,646  
Reinsurance share of amount invested by 
policyholders - -   42,471   43,326    42,471   43,326  
  (392,067)  (382,621)   (60,698)  (92,702)   (452,765)  (475,323) 
Net insurance premium revenue  255,602   237,562    9,392   70,301    264,994   307,863  
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22 LEASES 
 
(i)       Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position 
 
The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases: 
 
Right-of-use assets – office premises 

 
Lease liabilities (Note 17) 
 
Movement of lease liabilities during the year was as follows: 

 As at 
31 December 

 As at 
31 December 

 2021  2020 
 AED’000 

 
AED’000 

    
At 1 January  2,648    6,636  

Accrued interest  110    339  

Payments during the year  (2,726)   (4,327) 

At 31 December  32    2,648  

 
The incremental borrowing rate used for calculation of lease liabilities is 6.7% for the year ended 31 December 2021 
(31 December 2020: 6.7 %) 
 
Lease liabilities were classified in the statement of financial position as follows: 

 
  

As at 
31 December 

 As at 
31 December 

   2021  2020 
 

  AED’000 
 

AED’000 
      
Non-current portion    -     32  
Current portion    32    2,616  
 

   32    2,648  

      
(ii)       Amounts recognised in the statement of income 
 
Right-of-use assets 

     For the year ended 31 December   
 

  2021  2020 
 

  AED’000  AED’000 

Depreciation charged to general and administration 
expenses  

   2,962    4,081  
 
 
 
      

  As at 
31 December 

 As at 
31 December 

  2021  2020 
  AED’000 

 
AED’000 

     

Balance at the beginning of the year   3,599    7,680  

Depreciation expense for the year                 (2,962)                    (4,081) 

Balance at the end of the year   637    3,599  
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22 LEASES (continued)  
Lease liabilities 

     For the year ended 31 December 
 

  2021  2020 
 

  AED’000  AED’000 
 
Interest expense on lease liabilities     110    339  

      
The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31 December 2021 was AED 2,726 thousands (31 December 2020: 
AED 4,327 thousands). 
 
23  PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS 
 

 

As at 
31 December 

2021  

As at 
31 December 

2020 
 AED’000  AED’000 
    
Balance at the beginning of the year 10,962  8,618 
Charge for the year (Note 18.1) 3,081  3,607 
Payments during the year  (1,170)  (1,263) 
Balance at the end of the year 12,873  10,962 

    
 
24  SOCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
The Company did not make any social contributions during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). 
 
25  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
25.1 Insurance risk   
 
The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the 
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore 
unpredictable. The Company writes general, medical and life insurance contracts. General insurance contracts of the 
Company include Liability, Property, Motor, Fire, Marine, General accident and Engineering insurance contracts. 
Medical insurance contracts include both individual and group medical insurance contracts. Life insurance contracts 
include group, Individual Life and credit life insurance contracts. 
  
The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or the 
timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual 
benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Company is to ensure 
that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities. 
 
Risk management framework 
 
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk 
management framework. The Board has established the Audit and Risk Management Committee, which is responsible 
for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management framework. The Committee reports  regularly to the 
Board of  Directors on its activities related to Risk Management  framework and  further developments. The primary 
purpose of Risk Management framework is to protect the shareholders from events that deter the sustainable 
achievement of the set financial/performance objective.    
 
The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management  policies and 
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Risk 
Management principles are embedded in Company’s operational and financial processes and further 
mitigation/controls are implemented for effective Internal Risk Management framework in the functional processes. 
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25  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
25.1 Insurance risk  (continued) 
 
Risk management framework (continued) 
 
The Company's  Audit and Risk Management Committee oversees  how management  monitors compliance with the 
Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management  framework  
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Company's Audit and Risk Management Committee is assisted in 
its oversight role by Internal Audit and Risk functions.  
 
The Company does not foresee any material impact to its business and operations due to possible climate change 
effect in the near future. The Company will, however, be collating necessary data to monitor the possible effect on a 
periodic basis going forward. 
 
Two key elements of the Company's insurance risk management framework are its underwriting strategy and 
reinsurance strategy, as discussed below. 
 
Underwriting strategy 
 
The Company's underwriting strategy is to build balanced portfolios based on a large number of similar risks. This 
reduces the variability of the portfolio's  outcome. 
 
The underwriting strategy is set out by the Company that establishes the classes of business to be written, the territories  
in which business is to be written and the industry sectors in which the Company is prepared to underwrite. This 
strategy is cascaded by the business units to individual underwriters through detailed underwriting authorities that set 
out the limits that any one underwriter can write by line size, class of business, territory and industry in order to ensure 
appropriate risk selection within the portfolio. 
 
Business selection is part of Company’s underwriting procedures/guidelines whereby premiums are charged based 
on the assessment and type of the risks. Other factors such as risk inspections, mortality, persistency and current 
market trends are also considered in the risk underwriting and premium calculation. 
 
Reinsurance strategy 
 
The Company’s reinsurance arrangements include proportional, non-proportional, excess of loss and catastrophe 
coverage. The Company reinsures a portion of the insurance risks it underwrites in order to control its exposure to 
losses and protect capital resources. 
 
The Company  has a Reinsurance  department that is responsible to arrange reinsurance arrangement as per the annual 
business plans and also for setting the minimum-security criteria for acceptable reinsurance and monitoring the 
purchase of reinsurance by the business units  against  those  criteria.  The department monitors developments   in  
the  reinsurance programme and its ongoing adequacy. As a proactive measure and part of Risk Management 
framework, the reinsurers securities rating is monitored for any downgrade from credit risk perspective. The 
reinsurance regulations issued by the CBUAE are also incorporated in the Reinsurance strategy. 
 
The Company enters into a combination of proportionate and non-proportionate reinsurance treaties to reduce the net 
exposure to the Company. In addition, underwriters are allowed to buy facultative reinsurance in certain specified 
circumstances. 
 
25.1.1 Frequency and severity of claims 
 
The Company manages risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and proactive 
claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms 
of type and amount of risk, industry and geography. Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk 
selection criteria. 
 
The Company has the right not to renew individual policies, to re-price the risk, to impose deductibles and to reject 
the payment of a fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the Company to pursue third parties for payment 
of some or all costs (for example, subrogation). Furthermore, the Company’s strategy limits the total exposure to any 
one territory and the exposure to any one industry.  
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25  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
25.1 Insurance risk  (continued) 
 
25.1.1    Frequency and severity of claims (continued) 
 
The reinsurance arrangements include excess and catastrophe coverage. The effect of such reinsurance arrangements 
is that the Company should not suffer net insurance losses of a set minimum limit of AED 1,000 thousand (31 
December 2020 : 1,000 thousand) in any one event. The Company has survey units dealing with the mitigation of 
risks surrounding claims. This unit investigates and recommends ways to improve risk claims. The risks are frequently 
reviewed individually and adjusted to reflect the latest information on the underlying facts, current law, jurisdiction, 
contractual terms and conditions, and other factors. The Company actively manages and pursues early settlements of 
claims to reduce its exposure to unpredictable developments. 
 
25.1.2 Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments 
 
Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Company is liable for all insured events 
that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract term. As a 
result, certain claims are settled over a long period of time and element of the claims provision includes incurred but 
not reported claims (IBNR). The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the 
estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Company, where information about the claim event is 
available. IBNR claims may not be apparent to the insured until many years after the event that gave rise to the claims. 
For some insurance contracts, the IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will typically display greater 
variations between initial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty of estimating these 
liabilities. In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Company considers information 
available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous 
periods. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order to allow for the possible 
distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio. In estimating the liability for claims 
incurred but not reported, the Company involves an independent external appointed actuary. 
 
The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected subrogation 
value and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information 
regarding its claims’ exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is possible that 
the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability established. The amount of insurance claims is 
in certain cases sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development of legal precedent on matters of contract 
and tort.  
 
Where possible, the Company adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This provides 
a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected. The projections given by the various 
methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The most appropriate estimation technique is 
selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and the extent of the development of each accident 
year. 
 
In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company’s estimation techniques are 
a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims experience using predetermined 
formulae where greater weight is given to actual claims experience as time passes. The initial loss-ratio estimate is 
an important assumption in the estimation technique and is based on previous years’ experience, adjusted for factors 
such as premium rate changes, anticipated market experience and historical claims inflation. 
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25  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
25.1 Insurance risk (continued) 
 
25.1.2 Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments (continued) 
 
The loss ratios for the current and prior year, before and after reinsurance are summarised below by type of risk: 
 
 
 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 
Type of risk Gross loss ratio Net loss ratio Gross loss ratio Net loss    ratio 
     
General insurance 87% 53% 43% 51% 

Life insurance  116% 35% 40% 9% 
 
Based on the simulations performed, the impact on profit of a change of 1% in the loss ratio for both gross and net of 
reinsurance recoveries would be as follows: 
 

2021  2020 
Gross  Net  Gross  Net 

AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000 
       

Impact of an increase of 1% in loss ratio   7,524  2,997   8,004    3,251  

Impact of a decrease of 1% in loss ratio   (7,524)   (2,997)   (8,004)   (3,251) 
 
25.1.3 Process used to determine the assumptions 
 
The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in 
neutral estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The sources of data used as inputs for the assumptions are 
internal, using detailed studies that are carried out quarterly. The assumptions are checked to ensure that they are 
consistent with observable market practices or other published information. 
 
The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim 
and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate, case by case basis with due 
regard to the claim circumstances, information available from loss adjusters and historical evidence of the size of 
similar claims. 
 
Case estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information arises.  
 
The provisions are based on information currently available. However, the ultimate liabilities may vary as a result of 
subsequent developments or if catastrophic events occur. The impact of many of the items affecting the ultimate costs 
of the loss is difficult to estimate. 
 
The provision estimation difficulties also differ by class of business due to differences in the underlying insurance 
contract, claim complexity, the volume of claims and the individual severity of claims, determining the occurrence 
date of a claim, and reporting lags. 
 
The method used by the Company for calculating the provision of IBNR takes into account historical data, past 
estimates and details of the reinsurance programme, to assess the expected size of reinsurance recoveries. The 
methods more commonly used are the chain-ladder (“CL”), expected loss ratios (“ELR”) and the Bornhuetter-
Ferguson (“BF”)methods. 
 
Chain-ladder methods may be applied to premiums, paid claims or incurred claims (for example, paid claims plus 
case estimates). The basic technique involves the analysis of historical claims development factors and the selection 
of estimated development factors based on this historical pattern. The selected development factors are then applied 
to cumulative claims data for each accident year that is not yet fully developed to produce an estimated ultimate 
claims cost for each accident year. 
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25  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
25.1 Insurance risk  (continued) 
 
25.1.3 Process used to determine the assumptions (continued) 
 
Chain-ladder techniques are most appropriate for those accident years and classes of business that have reached a 
relatively stable development pattern. Chain-ladder techniques are less suitable in cases in which the insurer does not 
have a developed claims history for a particular class of business. 
  
The Bornhuetter-Ferguson method uses a combination of a benchmark or market- based estimate and an estimate 
based on claims experience. The former is based on a measure of exposure such as premiums; the latter is based on 
the paid or incurred claims to date. The two estimates are combined using a formula that gives more weight to the 
experience-based estimate as time passes. This technique has been used in situations in which developed claims 
experience was not available for the projection (recent accident years or new classes of business). 
 
The choice of selected results for each accident year of each class of business depends on an assessment of the 
technique that has been most appropriate to observed historical developments. In certain instances, this has meant 
that a weighted average of different techniques have been selected for individual accident years or groups of accident 
years within the same class of business. The Company has an internal actuary and independent external actuaries are 
also involved in the valuation of technical reserves of the Company and has used historical data for the past 9 years. 
The assumptions used for the life insurance contracts disclosed in this note are as follows: 
 
Mortality 
An appropriate base table of standard mortality is chosen depending on the type of contract. An investigation into 
Company’s experience over the most recent three years is performed, and statistical methods are used to adjust the 
rates reflected in the table to a best estimate of mortality for that year. Where data is sufficient to be statistically 
credible, the statistics generated by the data are used without reference to an industry table. For contracts insuring 
survivorship, an allowance is made for future mortality improvements based on trends identified in the data and in 
the continuous mortality investigations performed by independent actuarial bodies. 
 
Morbidity 
The rate of recovery from disability is derived from industry experience studies, adjusted where appropriate for the 
Company’s own experience.  
 
An analysis of sensitivity around various scenarios provides an indication of the adequacy of the Company’s 
estimation process. The Company believes that the liability for claims reported in the statement of financial position 
is adequate. 
 
However, it recognises that the process of estimation is based upon certain variables and assumptions which could 
differ when claims are finally settled. 
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25  RISK MANAGEMENT(continued) 
 
25.1 Insurance risk (continued) 
 
25.1.4  Changes in assumptions and sensitivity analysis  
 
This table illustrates assumptions used for IBNR calculation  
 
The loss origin is the accident quarter in which the loss is reported. 
 

Year 2021 2020 

IBNR Assumption Weighting Loss 
origins 

Loss 
Ratios 

Weighting Loss 
origins 

Loss 
Ratios Line of Business CL/ELR BF CL/ELR BF 

Aviation 50% 50% 2 30% 75% 25% 2 45% 

Engineering 75% 25% 2 75% 50% 50% 2 90% 

Fire 50% 50% 2 60% 50% 50% 2 80% 

General Accident 0% 100% - 25% 100% 0% 2 33% 

Liability 75% 25% 2 30% 75% 25% 2 40% 

Marine Cargo 0% 100% - 100% 0% 100% - 60% 

Marine Hull 50% 50% 2 115% 50% 50% 2 108% 

Group Life 0% 100% - 50% 0% 100% - 25% 

Credit Life 50% 50% 2 30% 100% 0% 2 15% 

Medical Others 100% 0% 2 60% 50% 50% 2 55% 

Medical Pentacare 100% 0% 2 65% 100% 0% 2 65% 

Medical Nextcare 50% 50% 2 68% 100% 0% 2 68% 

Medical NAS 0% 100% - 65% 25% 75% 2 65% 

Motor TPL 100%  3 45% 0% 100% - 45% 

Motor Comprehensive 100% 0% 3 60% 50% 50% 2 65% 

Motor Comprehensive Cat 100% 0% 2 1% 100% 0% 2 1% 
 
This table illustrates the assumptions used for mathematical reserve and non unit reserve calculation 
 

Assumption 
Individual 
Life Term Assurance Credit Life Unit-Linked 

Mortality 
110% RI 

rates 100% A67-70 80% A67-70 
100% RI 

Rates 

Interest Rate 1% pa 1% pa 1% pa 1% pa 

Renewal Expenses AED 230 - - AED 230 

Inflation 5% pa - - 5% pa 

Unit Fund Growth - - - 3% pa 
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25  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
25.1 Insurance risk  (continued) 
 
25.1.4  Changes in assumptions and sensitivity analysis (continued) 
 
The following changes in IBNR assumptions have been made between the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 
December 2021. 
 
 Adding one year of data 
 Changing the loss ratio 
 Changing the number of origins used for the ELR method 
 Changing the weights applied to each tail method 
 Changing the outlier percentage 
 Changing the development factor 
 
The following table shows the impact of Changes in IBNR assumptions relating to major lines of business:  
 

2021 Motor Medical Credit Life Fire General Accident 
 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
IBNR at the beginning of the 
year  26,937   9,635   1,719   3,336   1,623  
Change in data  (7,792)  (4,451)  (1,960)  529   2,105  
Loss ratio  (1,164)  656   2,348   (1,269)  (688) 
Expected loss ratio origins  1,071   -                      -     -                             -    
Method weights  2,263   1,989   (53)  -     (246) 
Selected development  (4,017)  (706)  (265)  -     (272) 
IBNR at the end of the year  17,298   7,123   1,789   2,596   2,522  
            

2020  Motor   Medical   Credit Life   Fire  
 General 
Accident  

 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
IBNR at the beginning of the 
year  36,653   9,342   1,843   2,048   2,015  
Change in data  (5,438)  1,879   (819)  1,998   (492) 
Loss ratio  636   (442)                   -     -     (113) 
Expected loss ratio origins                     -     -     631   -                             -    
Method weights  4,645   686    -    -     (699) 
Outlier %  125   80   6   (92)  26  
Selected development  (9,684)  (1,910)  58   (618)  886  
IBNR at the end of the year  26,937   9,635   1,719   3,336   1,623  

 
The following table shows sensitivity impact on general insurance contracts: 
 

OVERALL SENSITIVITY OF NET RESULTS 

TECHNICAL PROVISIONS 
CATEGORY 

AED ‘000 

PESSIMISTIC BEST OPTIMISTIC 

ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE 

IBNR and IBNER 55,841 34,979 30,777 
ULAE 8,431 6,974 6,657 
AURR 13,697 10,720 7,933 
SUBTOTAL 77,969 52,673 45,367 
OTHER TECHNICAL PROVISIONS 166,930 166,930 166,930 
GRAND TOTAL 244,899 219,603 212,297 
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25  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
25.1 Insurance risk  (continued) 
 
25.1.4  Changes in assumptions and sensitivity analysis (continued) 
 

Sensitivities 
PESSIMISTIC BEST OPTIMISTIC 

ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE 
IBNR and IBNER increase NLR by 5% Best estimate NLR decrease NLR by 5% 
ULAE increase NLR by 5% Best estimate NLR decrease NLR by 5% 

AURR 
increase NLR by 5% 
increase AER by 2% 

Best estimate NLR 
Best estimate AER 

decrease NLR by 5% 
decrease AER by 2% 

 
25.2 Financial risk 
 
The Company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance 
assets and insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is that in the long-term its investment proceeds are 
not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The most important components of this 
financial risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk (which includes: foreign currency risk, equity and debt price 
risk and interest rate risk) and operational risk. 
 
25.2.1 Credit risk   
 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the other party by failing to 
discharge an obligation. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are regularly reviewed 
by the Risk department for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment and further is reviewed by the Chief 
Financial Officer. 
 
Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:  
 reinsurance contract assets; 
 insurance receivables; 
 other receivables; 
 investment securities - debt; 
 bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months; 
 statutory deposit; and 
 cash and cash equivalents 
 
To minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial 
condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities 
or economic characteristics of the reinsurers. Reinsurance is placed with reinsurers’ approved by the management, 
which are generally international reputed companies. For reinsures, only independently rated reinsurers with a 
minimum rating of B+ and other equivalent rating as per CBUAE stipulation are accepted. 
 
At each reporting date, management performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the 
reinsurance strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment if required. 
 
The Company maintains records of the payment history for significant contract holders with whom it conducts regular 
business. The exposure to individual counterparties is also managed by other mechanisms, such as the legal right of 
offset where counterparties are both debtors and creditors of the Company. Management information reported to the 
Company includes details of provisions for impairment on insurance and other receivables and subsequent write-offs. 
Exposures to individual policyholders and groups of policyholders are mitigated by ongoing credit evaluation of their 
financial condition. Where there exists significant exposure to individual policyholders, or homogenous groups of 
policyholders, a financial analysis equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is carried out by the Company.  
 
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets carried 
at amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk. A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a 
contractual payment. Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a 
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. The insurance receivables and other receivables are 
unrated. 
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25  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
25.2 Financial risk (continued) 
 
25.2.1 Credit risk (continued) 
 
The Company considers any financial assets measured at amortised overdue for more than 90 days to be in default 
and are accordingly fully provided for.  
 
Management has established limits so that, at any time, less than 10% of the outstanding balances/ transactions are 
with any individual counterparty. 
 
The credit risk on deposits with banks with original maturities of more than three months, statutory deposits and bank 
balances and cash is limited because the counterparties are licensed banks with sound financial positions. 
 
The Company monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector and by geographic location. An analysis of 
concentrations of credit risk at the reporting date is shown below: 
 

 
Bank balances, statutory 

deposit and debt investment 
Insurance and other 

receivables 
     
 2021 2020 2021 2020 
 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
     
Carrying amount  324,296   257,603   391,764   427,257  

     
Concentration by sector     

- Financial institution / Reinsurance companies  -    -    59,382   82,426  
- Banks 324,296  257,603   24,855   15,866  
- Real estate  -   -   11,902   16,291  
- Service  -   -   46,922   52,767  
- Others  -   -   248,703   259,907  
Total carrying amount  324,296   257,603   391,764   427,257  

     
Concentration by location     
- UAE  290,448   225,207   289,801   339,131  
- GCC  33,783   32,396   61,062   68,595  
- Other Arab Countries  -    -    6,515   7,333  
- Asian Countries  -    -    1,046   4,152  
- European Countries  -    -    5,564   7,831  
- Others  65   -    27,776   215  
Total carrying amount  324,296   257,603   391,764   427,257  

 
The above classes of financial instruments provide the best representation for the Company's maximum exposure to 
credit risk at the end of the year. 
 
The concentrations by location for insurance and other receivables and reinsurance contract assets are measured based 
on the residential status of the counter parties. The concentration by location for non-trading investments is measured 
based on the location of the issuer of the security. 
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25  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
25.2 Financial risk (continued) 
 
25.2.1 Credit risk (continued) 
 
There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to cash and bank balances (including bank deposits and 
statutory deposit), as the Company holds cash accounts in a large number of financial institutions. The table below presents 
an analysis of bank balances and cash and fixed deposits by rating agency designation at the end of the reporting year based 
on Moody’s rating or its equivalent for the main banking relationships: 
 2021  2020 

 AED’000  AED’000 
    

Aa3  258    873  
A1  91,157    34,760  
Baa1  30,680    60,980  
Ba1  140,838    94,036  
B1  19,642    18,914  
Not rated  25,221    25,872  

 
 

307,846   
 

 235,485  
 
The Company has fixed deposits in a financial institution which is not rated. Based on the past experience with the 
financial institution, the management considers this deposit with a sound credit rating and thus, the impact of any 
expected credit losses is not significant. 
 
The Company is also exposed to credit risk in relation to debt investments that are measured at fair value through profit or loss. 
The maximum exposure at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of these investments amounting to AED 
16,450 thousand  (31 December 2020 : AED 22,118 thousand) 
  
There are no collaterals against the debt instrument. 
 
For all classes of financial assets held by the Company, the maximum credit risk exposure to the Company is the 
carrying value as disclosed in the financial statements at the reporting date.  
 
25.2.2 Liquidity risk 
 
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability 
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out 
market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, the Company’s finance department maintains 
flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities. Liquidity requirements are monitored on a daily basis and management ensures that sufficient funds are 
available to meet any commitments as they arise. 
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25  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
25.2 Financial risk (continued) 
 
25.2.2 Liquidity risk (continued) 
 
Maturity profiles 
 
The maturity profile is monitored by management to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained. The table below 
summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets, financial liabilities, unearned premiums, third 
party recoveries and provision for default claims and refunds (within insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance 
contract assets) and unit linked reserves which are based on remaining undiscounted contractual cash flows and 
unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve, unexpired risk reserve, mathematical reserves, claims reported unsettled 
and claims incurred but not reported (within insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets) which are 
based on their expected cash flows. 
 
As at 31 December 2021 

 
Carrying 

amount  
Less than 1 

year  1 to 5 years  Over 5 years  
No maturity 

date  Total 
 AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000 
            
Assets            
Statutory deposit  10,000    -     -     -     10,000    10,000  
Investment securities              
Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss  47,871    11,102    11,956    -     24,813    47,871  

Financial assets at fair value 
through other comprehensive 
income   17    -     -     -     17    17  

Unit linked assets  368,887    -     57,247    311,640    -     368,887  
Reinsurance contract assets  831,514    454,251    203,254    174,009    -     831,514  
Bank deposits with original 
maturities of more than three 
months  205,965    189,204    16,761    -       205,965  

Deferred acquisition costs  19,061    19,061    -     -     -     19,061  
Insurance and other receivables 
(excluding prepayments and 
deferred acquisition costs)  330,686  330,686   -     -     -    330,686  

Cash and cash equivalents   91,881    91,881    -     -     -     91,881  

Total 1,905,882  1,096,185   289,218  
 
-  485,649    34,830   1,905,882 

            
Liabilities            
Insurance contract liabilities  1,105,249    623,339    267,890    214,020    -     1,105,249  
Payable to policyholders of  
 unit-linked products  368,887    -     57,247    311,640    -     368,887  
Insurance and other payables 
(excluding lease liabilities)  275,468    275,468    -     -     -     275,468  

Lease liabilities 32  32   -     -     -     32  
 
Total  1,749,636    898,839    325,137    525,660    -     1,749,636 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 
(continued) 
 

77 

25  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
25.2 Financial risk (continued) 
 
25.2.2 Liquidity risk (continued) 
 
Maturity profiles (continued) 
 
As at 31 December 2020 
 

 
Carrying 

amount  
Less than 1 

year  1 to 5 years  Over 5 years  
No maturity 

date  Total 
 AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000 
            
Assets            
Statutory deposit 10,000   -     -     -     10,000    10,000  
Investment securities              
Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss  106,384    7,109    14,083    2,000    83,192    106,384  

Financial assets at fair value 
through other comprehensive 
income   6,887    -     -     -     6,887    6,887  

Unit linked assets  286,798    -     25,995    260,803    -     286,798  
Reinsurance contract assets  488,265    263,730    107,892    116,643    -     488,265  
Bank deposits with original 
maturities of more than three 
months  220,343    186,957    33,386      -     220,343  

Deferred acquisition costs  20,829    20,829    -     -     -     20,829  
Insurance and other receivables 
(excluding prepayments and 
deferred acquisition costs)  376,235    376,235    -     -     -     376,235  

Cash and cash equivalents   5,142    5,142    -     -     -     5,142  

Total  1,520,883    860,002    181,356  
 
-  379,446    100,079    1,520,883  

            
Liabilities            
Insurance contract liabilities 740,417   421,547    166,641    152,229    -     740,417  
Payable to policyholders of  
 unit-linked products 286,798   -     25,995    260,803    -     286,798  
Insurance and other payables 
(excluding lease liabilities) 362,144   362,144    -     -     -     362,144  

Lease liabilities 2,648   2,725    32    -     -     2,757  
Bank overdraft  584  584        584 
 
Total 1,392,591   787,000    192,668    413,032    -     1,392,700  
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25  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
25.2 Financial risk (continued) 
 
25.2.3 Market risk 
 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of 
changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its issuer, 
or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The Company’s market risks arise from open positions in (a) 
foreign currencies (b) interest bearing and (c) price risk assets and liabilities, to the extent they are exposed to general 
and specific market movements. Management sets limits on the exposure to currency and interest rate risk that may 
be acceptable, which are monitored on a regular basis. However, the use of this approach does not prevent losses 
outside of these limits in the event of more significant market movements. The unit linked contracts have not been 
considered for sensitivity of market risk and as these are merely passed through contracts. 
 
Sensitivities to market risks included below are based on a change in one factor while holding all other factors 
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the factors may be correlated - for example, 
credit spreads, changes in interest rate and changes in foreign currency rates. 
 
Market risk drivers include equity prices, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and interest rates. The Company 
limits market risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by continuous monitoring of developments in local equity 
and bond markets. In addition, the Company actively monitors the key factors that affect stock and bond market 
movements, including analysis of the operational and financial performance of investees. 
 
25.2.3.1 Foreign currency risk 
 
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange 
rates and arises from financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency. The Company’s functional currency is 
the UAE Dirham. 
 
The Company has also exposures in USD, to which the AED is pegged and the Company’s exposure to currency risk 
is limited to that extent. 
 
25.2.3.2 Interest rate risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates. 
 
The Company's exposure to interest rate risk relates to its bank deposits. At 31 December 2021, bank deposits carry 
fixed interest rates ranging from 0.15% to 8.5% per annum (31 December 2020: 0.68% to 8.5% per annum) and 
therefore not exposed to cashflow interest rate risk. 
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25  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
25.2 Financial risk (continued) 
 
25.2.3 Market risk (continued) 
 
25.2.3.3 Price risk 
 
Price risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices 
(other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific 
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the 
market. 
 
The Company’s price risk exposure relates to financial assets and financial liabilities whose values will fluctuate as 
a result of changes in market prices. The Company’s equity price risk policy requires it to manage such risks by 
setting and monitoring objectives and constraints on investments, diversification plans, sector and market. The fair 
values of financial assets are not different from their carrying values. 
 
Sensitivities 
The table below shows the results of sensitivity testing on the Company’s profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income by type of business. The sensitivity analysis indicates the effect of changes in price risk factors arising from 
the impact of the changes in these factors on the Company’s investments: 
 

 10% increase in price 10% decrease in price 

 
FVTPL FVTOCI FVTPL FVTOCI 

 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 
 

    
2021     
Quoted debt investments  1,645   -    (1,645)  -   
Quoted equity investments  2,024   2   (2,024)  (2) 
Investment in funds  736    (736)  
Unquoted equity investments  382   -    (382)  -   
 

    

2020 
    

Quoted debt investments  2,212   -    (2,212)  -   
Quoted equity investments  7,179   659   (7,179)  (659) 
Investment in funds  508   -    (508)  -   
Unquoted equity investments  740   30   (740)  (30) 

 
25.3 Operational risk 
 
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls 
fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to 
financial loss. 
 
The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and by 
monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. 
 
The Company has detailed systems and procedures manuals with effective segregation of duties, access controls, 
authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff training and assessment processes etc. with a focus on compliance 
and internal audit framework. Business risks such as changes in environment, technology and the industry are 
monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and budgeting process. 
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25  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
25.4  Classification of financial assets and liabilities  
 
(a) The table below sets out the Company’s classification of each class of financial asset and liability and their 

carrying amounts as at 31 December 2021: 
 

FVTPL  FVTOCI   
Amortised 

 cost  Total 
AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000 

       
Financial assets:        
Cash and cash equivalents  -     -    91,881 91,881 
Bank deposits with original maturities of more 
than three months   -     -    205,965 205,965 

Statutory deposit  -     -    10,000 10,000 
Investment securities  47,871 17  -    47,888 
Insurance and other receivables   -     -    356,202 356,202 
Unit linked assets 355,533  -    13,354 368,887 
Total 403,404 17 677,402 1,080,823 
     
Financial liabilities:     
Insurance and other payables  -     -     275,500   275,500  
Payables to policyholders of unit linked 
products  355,533   -     13,354   368,887  
Bank overdraft  -     -     -     -    
Total  355,533   -     288,854   644,387  
     
(b) The table below sets out the Company’s classification of each class of financial asset and liability and their 

carrying amounts as at 31 December 2020: 
 

FVTPL  FVTOCI   
Amortised 

 cost  Total 
AED’000  AED’000  AED’000  AED’000 

       
Financial assets:        
Cash and cash equivalents  -     -     5,142   5,142  
Bank deposits with original maturities of more 
than three months   -     -     220,343   220,343  

Statutory deposit  -     -     10,000   10,000  
Investment securities   106,384   6,887    113,271  
Insurance and other receivables   -     -     401,497   401,497  
Unit linked assets  264,574   -     22,224   286,798  
Total  370,958   6,887   659,206   1,037,051  
     
Financial liabilities:     
Insurance and other payables  -     -     364,792   364,792  
Payables to policyholders of unit linked 
products  264,574   -     22,224   286,798  
Bank overdraft  -     -     584   584  
Total  264,574   -     387,600   652,174  
 
Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial 
statements approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature for the current financial assets and liabilities, 
and for the financial assets and liabilities that are of mixed nature the impact of discounting is immaterial. 
 
25.5  Impact of COVID-19 
 
The Covid-19 pandemic that started during the first quarter of 2020 is still continuing. UAE has vaccinated a majority 
of the residents and this has resulted in a substantial reduction to the risk of the pandemic. However, the worldwide 
effect is still on. The identification of new variants of the virus across the world is a worrying factor.  
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25  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
25.5  Impact of COVID-19 (continued) 
 
The various measures taken for the containment of this virus have resulted in economic disruption though the scale 
varies from country to country. The industries that are generally impacted are airline, travel and leisure, and tourism 
and related activities.  
 
UAE has been very proactive in containment measures and seamless vaccinations to its residents. This has helped in 
ensuring the economy is running without any difficulty. The economic opening and the preventive measures have 
helped in the economic growth and stability of business though business in the tourism trade such as Airlines, Leisure 
and hospitality sectors continue to be affected. With the reduction in Covid 19 cases and successful vaccinations of 
majority of the population, the economy has been opened for business including leisure and hospitality sector. The 
successful start of EXPO 2020 is an example of a vibrant economy opening up. 
 
The Company had a marginal impact on its business due to the current circumstances. The economy of Dubai has 
now opened up and the Company expects this opening to improve the overall business. On the operational front, the 
Company’s robust and proactive action in enabling Work from Home facility and abiding by the Government 
directives on movement and congregation in offices etc during 2020 and 2021 have helped the Company to run the 
business as usual. The Company has no material exposure to airline or travel and tourism industries. The Company 
had medical claims during the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 which were not material to the financial 
statements. The Company expects COVID-19 related medical claims in future which are not expected to be material. 
The Company’s reinsurance arrangement covers the impact of the claims. The Company’s well rated and long 
standing reinsurers will stand by the Company in fulfilling the claims needs.  
 
The Company did not experience significant impact on account of COVID-19 for the investment portfolio held as at 
31 December 2021. 
 
26  CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Company's objectives when managing capital are summarised as follows: 
 
 to comply with the insurance capital requirements required by UAE Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended 

on Establishment of Insurance Authority and Organization of Its Operations as amended; 
 to protect its policy holders' interests; 
 to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns 

for the shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and 
 to provide an adequate return to the shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the 

level of risk. 
 
Capital is defined as share capital and retained earnings. 
 
The Financial Regulations for Insurance Companies specify the minimum amount and type of capital that must be 
held by the Company in addition to its insurance liabilities. The Company's management manages the capital and the 
related regulatory compliance requirements.   
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26  CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
The table below summarizes the Minimum Capital Requirement, Minimum Guarantee Fund and Solvency Capital 
Requirement of the Company and the total capital held to meet these required solvency margins. 

 
* The solvency numbers as at 31 December 2020 are not restated taking into account the restatements and adjustments 
disclosed in note 27 of the financial statements. 
 
The CBUAE (formerly, the IA) has issued resolution no. 42 for 2009 setting the minimum subscribed or paid up 
capital of AED 100 million for establishing insurance companies and AED 250 million for reinsurance companies. 
The resolution also stipulates that at least 75 percent of the capital of the insurance companies established in the 
U.A.E. should be owned by U.A.E. or G.C.C. national individuals or corporate bodies. The Company is in compliance 
with these rules. 
 
As per Article (8) of section (2) of Financial Regulations for Insurance Companies in the UAE, the Company shall 
comply with the requirements of solvency margin. 
 
The Company recorded a provision against advances for real estate properties during 2021 resulting in a solvency 
deficit. The Company has submitted an initial solvency recovery plan to the CBUAE on 11 November 2021 detailing 
the proposed course of action. The CBUAE has vide its communication dated 13 January 2022 given the Company 
time till 30 September 2022 towards the restoration of solvency. The Company, as part of its submitted action plan, 
divested the concentrated equity position in one investment during November 2021. This has resulted in reducing the 
solvency deficiency by 94%. The SCR Solvency Margin-Deficit as at 31 December 2021 amounted to AED (2.3) 
million and the Company is confident of rectifying the solvency position during the first quarter of 2022 by generating 
operating profits.   
 
 
 
 
 

  
As at 

31 December 
2021 

As at  
31 December  

2020* 
 AED’000 AED'000 

 

(Unaudited) 

(Unaudited) (As 
previously 

reported) 
   
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) 100,000 100,000 
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) 138,697 164,078 
Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 90,379 81,429 
Own Funds:   
  Basic own funds 136,399 185,264 
  Ancillary own funds   
MCR Solvency Margin-Surplus/(Deficit)  36,399 85,264 
SCR Solvency Margin-Surplus/(Deficit)  (2,298) 21,186 
MGF Solvency Margin-Surplus/(Deficit) 46,020 103,835 
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27 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS AND COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 
 
I.    Prior year adjustment to the impacted financial statement line items within the statement of financial position 
 
As at 1 January 2020 
 

 As previously 
reported         

 As 
restated  

 

As at 
 1 January 

2020 Adjustments 

 As at  
1 January 

2020 

   Adj a)   Adj b)   Adj c)   Adj e)   Adj f)   Adj g)   Adj h)   Adj l)  Adj m)  
 AED ’000 AED ’000  AED ’000  AED ’000  AED ’000  AED ’000  AED ’000  AED ’000  AED ’000  AED ’000 AED ’000 
ASSETS            
Property and equipment 101,584  (22,834)        78,750 
Intangible assets 8,229      15,108    23,337 
Investment properties 75,195 (75,195)         - 
Unit linked assets 261,026   (68,588)       192,438 
Reinsurance contract assets 518,265     20,543     538,808 
Insurance and other receivables 496,379     (19,808) (15,108) (3,743) 14,329 1,063 473,112 
Cash and bank balances 152,844    (152,844)      - 
Cash and cash equivalents -    20,059      20,059 
Bank deposits with original maturities of 
more than three months -       132,785     3,743   

 
136,528 

Total assets 1,816,163 (75,195) (22,834) (68,588) - 735 - - 14,329 1,063 1,665,673 

            
Liabilities and equity            
LIABILITIES            
Insurance contract liabilities 769,771     735   14,329  784,835 
Insurance and other payables 447,525                1,063 448,588 
Payable to policy holders' of unit-linked 
products 261,026   (68,588)      

 
192,438 

Total liabilities 1,490,322 - - (68,588) - 735 - - 14,329 1,063 1,437,861 

            
Accumulated losses (24,560) (75,195) (22,834)        (122,589) 
Net equity 325,841 (75,195) (22,834) - - - - - - - 227,812 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,816,163 (75,195) (22,834) (68,588) - 735 - - 14,329 1,063 1,665,673 
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27 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS AND COMPARATIVE INFORMATION (continued) 
 
I.  Prior year adjustment to the impacted financial statement line items within the statement of financial position (continued) 
 
As at 31 December 2020 
 

 As previously 
reported         

 
As restated  

 
As at 31 

December 
2020 

Adjustments 
 As at 31 

December 
2020  

  Adj a)   Adj b)   Adj c)   Adj e)   Adj f)   Adj g)   Adj h)   Adj l)   Adj m)   
  AED’000   AED’000   AED’000   AED’000   AED’000   AED’000   AED’000   AED’000   AED’000   AED’000   AED’000   

 
           

 ASSETS  
 

     
 

    
 Property and equipment  102,755  (22,834)        79,921 
 Intangible assets  5,653      11,108    16,761 
 Investment properties  72,270 (72,270)         - 
 Unit linked assets 363,066   (76,268)       286,798 
 Reinsurance contract assets  474,433     13,832     488,265 
 Insurance and other receivables  402,325      (11,108) (5,112) 14,329 1,063 401,497 
 Cash and bank balances  220,373    (220,373)      - 
 Cash and cash equivalents  -    5,142      5,142 
 Bank deposits with original 
maturities of more than three months -       215,231     5,112    220,343 
 Total assets  1,767,745 (72,270) (22,834) (76,268) - 13,832 - - 14,329 1,063 1,625,597  

           
 Liabilities and equity             
 LIABILITIES             
 Insurance contract liabilities  712,256     13,832   14,329  740,417 
 Insurance and other payables  363,729                1,063 364,792 
 Payable to policy holders' of unit-
linked products  363,066   (76,268)       286,798 
 Total liabilities  1,450,597 - - (76,268) - 13,832 - - 14,329 1,063 1,403,553  

           
 Accumulated losses  (34,513) (72,270) (22,834)        (129,617) 
 Net equity  317,148 (72,270) (22,834) - - - - - - - 222,044 
 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
EQUITY  1,767,745 (72,270) (22,834) (76,268) - 13,832 - - 14,329 1,063 1,625,597 
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27 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS AND COMPARATIVE INFORMATION (continued) 
 
II.  Prior year adjustment to the statement of income  
 
For the year ended 31 December 2020  

As previously  
reported    

  
As restated  

For the 
year ended  
31 December 2020  Adjustments  

For the  
year ended  

31 December 2020  
 Adj a) Adj c) Adj f) Adj g) Adj j) Adj k) Adj n) Adj o)   

AED ’000 AED ’000 AED ’000 AED ’000 AED ’000 AED ’000 AED ’000 AED ’000 AED ’000 AED ’000 
UNDERWRITING INCOME           
Gross written premium  867,911           867,911  
Reinsurance premiums ceded  (453,227)        (43,326)   (496,553) 

  414,684   -    -    -    -    -    -    (43,326)   371,358  
Net change in unearned premium and 
policyholders’ reserve  (98,603)   7,680       43,326   (15,898)  (63,495) 
Net earned premium  316,081   -    7,680   -    -    -    -    -    (15,898)  307,863  
Gross commission earned  67,865       9,784      77,649  
Total underwriting income  383,946   -    7,680   -    -    9,784   -    -    (15,898)  385,512  
           
UNDERWRITING EXPENSES           
Gross claims incurred  (343,280)    6,711        (336,569) 
Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers  212,916     (6,711)       206,205  
Net claims incurred  (130,364)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -     (130,364) 
Commission incurred  (95,332)      (10,567)     (105,899) 
Administrative expenses  (76,010)     (4,000)   (15,008)    (95,018) 
Other operational costs related to 
underwriting activities  (51,515)     4,000   783      (46,732) 
Net movement in reserve of unit linked 
products  9,045    (7,680)       15,898   17,263  
Total underwriting expenses  (344,176)  -    (7,680)  -    -    (9,784)  (15,008)  -    15,898   (360,750) 
UNDERWRITING PROFIT  39,770   -    -    -    -    -    (15,008)  -    -    24,762  
Net investment income/ (loss)  (4,977)  2,925          (2,052) 
Provision for doubtful debts  -         (23,271)    (23,271) 
Board of directors’ remuneration  -         (3,375)    (3,375) 
General and administrative expenses  (41,654)       41,654     -   
PROFIT/ (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR  (6,861)  2,925   -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (3,936) 
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27 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS AND COMPARATIVE INFORMATION (continued) 
 

III.     Prior year adjustment to the statement of cash flows 
 

For year ended 31 December 2020 

 
As previously 

reported  
 

Adjustments 
 

As restated  
 For the year ended  

31 December 2020 
  For the year ended  

31 December 2020 
 

 Adj a)  Adj c)   Adj e)   Adj f)   Adj g)   Adj h)  Adj q)  
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 

Cash flows from operating activities          
Net profit / (loss) for the period (6,861) 2,925       (3,936) 
Net movement in fair value of investments held for unit linked 
products (9,045)       9,045  
Provision for doubtful debt -       23,271 23,271 
Adjustment for:                      
Decrease /(Increase) in the fair value of Investment Properties  2,925   (2,925)       - 
Depreciation and amortisation  8,184       4,000     12,184  
Increase in insurance and other receivables (including related 
parties) 94,054     (19,808)  (4,000)  1,369  (23,271) 48,344 
Increase in unit linked assets -   7,680       (102,040)  (94,360) 
Increase in unit linked liabilities -   (7,680)      102,040   94,360  
Increase in reinsurance contract assets  43,832     6,711     50,543  
Increase in insurance and other payables   22,232         (102,040) (79,808) 
Increase in insurance contract liabilities   (57,515)    13,097    (44,418) 
Net cash generated from operating activities   100,879  -    -    -    -    -    1,369    (92,995)  9,253  
          
Cash flows from investing activities                       
Interest received  8,054        (1,369)   6,685  
Purchase of investments held at FVTPL (excluding unit 
linked assets)   (18,017)         (166) (18,183) 
Purchase of policyholders' of unit-linked products   (92,995)       92,995 - 
Proceeds from disposal of investments held at FVTOCI   16,992       166 17,158 
(Increase) / decrease in fixed deposit with banks with original 
maturities of more than three months  (66,050)    (17,765)    1,369    (82,446) 
Net cash used in investing activities (92,042)  -    -    (17,765)  -    -    -   92,995  (16,812) 
                        
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents  4,277              -     (17,765)            -               -     1,369    (12,119) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  43,967     (27,290)      16,677  
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  48,244  - -  (45,055)            -               -     1,369    4,558  
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27  PRIOR  YEAR ADJUSTMENTS AND COMPARATIVE INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Management has re-evaluated the accounting treatment of some transactions and assets recorded in the financial 
statements as at 31 December 2020 and in accordance with IAS 8 "Accounting policies, changes in accounting 
estimates and errors" restated its financial statements to correct these errors in the financial statements for the year 
ended 31 December 2021 as prior year restatements. The impact of these misstatements has been reflected in the 
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2020 and thereafter in the respective years presented in the financial 
statements. The details of these restatements are listed below: 
 
a. Restatement of advances paid for purchase of real estate properties 
 
In prior years, the Company made payments towards the acquisition of real estate properties to the amount of AED 
36,500 thousand which was classified as investment property and revalued to an amount of AED 72,270 thousand as 
at 31 December 2020 . The payments related to the purchase of  a 60 residential-unit in a single building and a plot 
of land of 150,000 square feet with integrated infrastructure. The counterparties (related parties) to the above 
transactions never fulfilled their obligations to the Company (the Buyer) since purchase date, and furthermore the 
transaction did not result in transfer of any assets during this period. The Company neither has title deeds nor 
possession of the said asset. At no point was the Company able to assert control over the real estate properties and 
the Company was unable to take possession of the property. Furthermore, in terms of the 150,000 square feet of the 
land referred to above, in the prior years the area was reduced to 56,800 square feet and later amended to 78,900 
square feet. This was all implemented on the instruction from the former Chairman who was also the representative 
of the related party . This has resulted in the incorrect recognition of fair value gains of AED 35,770 thousand on 
investment properties in respect of which the Company never obtained possession or legal title, and resulted in the 
misappropriation of the advances amounting to AED 36,500 thousand paid to a related party towards the acquisition 
of the investment properties.  
 
As part the re-evaluation performed by management of the Company, the following was noted: 
 

● the classification of the advances paid should not have been classified as investment properties under IFRS 
but should have been accounted for as advance payments as the Company did not have control of the real 
estate properties or the development thereof, and 

● the advances should have been considered impaired prior to 1 January 2020 as there were no future 
economic benefits expected from these properties.  

 
This has resulted in overstating the Company's assets as at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2020 by AED 72,270 
thousand and AED 75,195 thousand respectively and as such the properties have been reclassified from “investment 
properties” to “advances paid for purchase of real estate properties” (included within “insurance and other 
receivables”) and impaired in full. This correction resulted in an impact on “investment properties”, “insurance and 
other receivables” and “accumulated losses”. Furthermore, it is to be noted that the management of the Company had 
previously recorded the AED 72,270 thousand as an impairment loss in the statement of income for the six month 
period ended 30 June 2021 instead of accumulated losses as at 1 January 2020. The Company recorded a loss in the 
statement of income during the year ended 31 December 2020 amounting to AED 2,925 thousand. Since the 
Company has restated the prior period number, this was corrected in the financial statements for the year ended 31 
December 2021 as per the above.  
 
The Company is pursuing legal actions against the involved parties to recover the Company's rights, in accordance 
with the resolution of Shareholders Assembly Meeting held on 30 September 2021.  
 
b. Restatement for measurement of free hold land 
 
In prior years, the Company had recorded free hold land at an amount of AED 82,045 thousand. The land was obtained 
in an exchange transaction which occurred on 15 July 2018. The previous asset was recorded at an amount of AED 
82,045 thousand and as part of the exchange the Company received the land for the fair value of AED 59,210 thousand. 
The Company received the title deeds for the land and the exchange was considered to have commercial substance. 
On the date of exchange, the land should have been recorded at AED 59,210 thousand. The Company restated the 
prior period cost of the free hold land to AED 59,210 thousand. This correction resulted in AED 22,834 thousand 
reduction in “property and equipment” and AED 22,834 thousand increase in “accumulated losses” as at each of 1 
January 2020 and 31 December 2020. 
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27 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS AND COMPARATIVE INFORMATION (continued) 
 
c. Restatement of Investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products and payables to 

policyholders of unit linked products 
 
In prior years the Company entered into a reinsurance arrangement with another party and incorrectly recorded assets 
and liabilities of  AED 76,268 thousand as at 31 December 2020 and AED 68,588 thousand as at 1 January 2020 
within each of the “Investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products” and “payables to 
policyholders of unit linked products”. The fair value gains or losses on these investments and the changes in reserves 
for these investments amounted to AED 7,680 thousand respectively recorded in the statement of income. 
 
Management reassessed the reinsurance arrangements and considered the contractual terms of the contract. In terms 
of the contract, the Company has no rights to any underlying assets related to the unit linked contracts and has only 
assumed an obligation to reinsure a portion of any losses on the contract. As such, the Company should not have 
accounted for any financial assets, liabilities on behalf of policyholders nor any fair value gains or losses on these 
investments. In the current period, management of the Company reversed these amounts since they do not represent 
the Company’s assets, liabilities or profit or loss. The prior year comparatives have been adjusted to correct the 
incorrect recognition of the assets, liabilities and profit or loss accordingly.  
 
d. Reclassification of Investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products 
 
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2020 management of the Company recorded AED 88,984 thousand and AED 
45,658 thousand respectively within “Investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products” in the 
statement of financial position. The contracts have been issued to the customers (policyholders) of the Company and 
a back to back arrangement has been entered into whereby the Company is compensated by another entity (Reinsurer) 
for the payments to policyholders. The underlying investments related to the unit linked policies are held by the 
Reinsurer and not by the Company and the Company has no access to these assets and does not control these assets. 
The Company has incorrectly shown the individual underlying assets of the unit linked policies and not as a financial 
asset owing by the Reinsurer.  During the current year, management of the Company corrected the presentation by 
disclosing these balances within “Unit linked assets” as “financial asset from reinsurer in relation to investments held 
on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products” and within “net movement in reserve of  unit linked products” as 
“net movement in financial asset from reinsurer in relation to unit linked products”.  
 

e. Reclassification of cash and bank balances 
 

In the current year, management of the Company identified that cash and cash equivalents were not disclosed as a 
separate line item on the face of the statement of financial position as required under IFRS. The cash and bank 
balances previously disclosed included “Bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months” which do 
not meet the definition of cash and cash equivalents. In addition, the Company had erroneously classified “Bank 
deposits with original maturities of more than three months” in cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the 
statement of cash flows. As at 1 January 2020, cash and bank balances amounting to AED 152,844 thousand included 
cash and cash equivalents amounting to AED 20,059 thousand and bank deposits with original maturities of more 
than three months amounting to AED 132,785 thousand. As 31 December 2020, cash and bank balances amounting 
to AED 220,373 thousand included cash and cash equivalents amounting to AED 5,142 thousand and bank deposits 
with original maturities of more than three months amounting to AED 215,231 thousand. 
 
As a result,  the presentation was adjusted such that “Cash and cash equivalents” and “Bank deposits with original 
maturities of more than three months” are presented as separate line items on the face of the statement of financial 
position. The comparatives were adjusted to correct the prior years.  
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27 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS AND COMPARATIVE INFORMATION (continued) 
 
f.  Restatement of third-party (“TP”) recoveries 
 

Management reassessed the presentations of TP recoveries in the financial statements and considered whether the 
presentation was aligned with the accounting policy and the principles of IFRS 4. The following was noted: 

● “TP recoveries against claims reported unsettled” as at 1 January 2020 were presented as part of the  
“insurance and other receivables” whilst the accounting policy states this should be presented net of  
“insurance contract liabilities”. Similarly, “TP recoveries against paid claims”, were presented as part of  
“insurance and other receivables” as opposed to “reinsurance contract assets”. 

● “TP recoveries against paid claims” as at 31 December 2020 were presented net of “insurance contract 
liabilities” and not as part of “reinsurance contract assets”.  

● The corresponding “reinsurance share of TP recoveries against paid claims” as at 1 January 2020 and 31 
December 2020 was incorrectly presented in “reinsurance contract assets” and not as “insurance contract 
liabilities”. Furthermore, the statement of income presented the claims as “insurance claims recovered from 
reinsurers” and not “gross claims incurred” on the statement of income. 

● Furthermore, in the statement of income, the amounts have been included within “gross claims incurred” 
instead of “insurance claims recovered from reinsurers”. 

 
The errors in presentation noted above were corrected and the comparative figures for the previous years have been 
restated to correct the error in presentation. 
 

g. Reclassification of Licensed know-how fee 
 
In prior years, licensed know-how fee arising from an agreement between the Company and a third party, was 
accounted for as a prepayment under “other receivables” which should have been recognised as an intangible asset. 
Furthermore, the amortisation of the expense was included under “other operational expenses related to underwriting 
activities” line item on the statement of income which should have been recognised as “amortisation on intangible 
assets” within “administrative expenses”. As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2020, an amount of AED 11,108 
thousand and AED 15,108 thousand respectively were recorded  within “other receivables” which is included in the 
“insurance and other receivables” line item on the statement of financial position. For the year ended 31 December 
2020, AED 4,000 thousand was included within “other operational expenses related to underwriting activities” line 
item on the statement of income.  
 
During the current year, management of the Company reclassified the amounts included within “other receivables” 
to “intangible assets” and the amounts included within “other operational expenses related to underwriting activities” 
to “administrative expenses”. 
 
h. Reclassification of accrued interest receivables 
 
In prior years, as at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2020, accrued interest receivable amounting to AED 5,112 
thousand and AED 3,743 thousand respectively related to specific bank balances was incorrectly included within 
“Insurance and other receivables” and not as part of the related bank balances which are measured at amortised cost. 
In the current year, management of the Company has reclassified these balances from “Insurance and other 
receivables” to “Bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months” in order to correct the 
classification. 
 
i. Reclassification of mathematical reserve and unexpired risk reserve 
 
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2020, the following was noted:  

● gross mathematical reserves amounting to AED 107,721 thousand and AED 98,670 thousand respectively 
were included within “Unearned premiums”,  

● reinsurance share of mathematical reserves amounting to AED 92,932 thousand  and AED 86,284 thousand 
respectively were included within “reinsurance share of unearned premiums”,  

● gross unexpired risk reserve amounting to AED 2,181 thousand and AED 1,109 thousand respectively were 
included within “claims incurred but not reported” and  

● reinsurance share of unexpired risk reserve amounting to AED (7,804) thousand  and AED (9,573) thousand 
respectively were included within “reinsurance share of claims incurred but not reported”.  
 

In the current year, management of the Company has reclassified these balances to show them as separate line items 
within the “insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets” disclosure in order to more appropriately 
reflect the nature of these balances as required under IFRS.  
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j. Reclassification of profit commission income and profit commission expense 

For the year ended 31 December 2020, profit commission income amounting to AED 9,784 thousand and profit 
commission expense amounting to AED 10,567 thousand were included within “other operating expenses related to 
underwriting activities”.  

In the current year, management of the Company has reclassified the profit commission income and profit 
commission expense amounts from “other operating expenses related to underwriting activities” to “Gross 
commission earned” and “Commission incurred” line items in the statement of income respectively in order to more 
appropriately reflect the nature of these amounts. 
 
k. Reclassification from general and administrative expenses to provision for doubtful debts, administrative 

expenses and Board of Directors’ remuneration 
 
In the current year, management of the Company identified and adjusted the presentation such that amounts were 
reclassified from “general and administrative expenses” to “administrative expenses”, “provision for doubtful debts” 
and “Board of Directors’ remuneration” within the statement of income. The comparative information has been 
restated to reflect the revised classification. For the year ended 31 December 2020, general and administrative 
expenses amounting to AED 41,654 thousand were reclassified to administrative expenses (AED 15,008 thousand), 
provision for doubtful debts (AED 23,271 thousand) and Board of Directors’ remuneration (AED 3,375 thousand).  
 
l. Reclassification of provision for defaults claims and refunds 
 
During the current year, management noted that provision for default claims and refunds related to credit life 
insurance contracts was not classified and presented within “insurance contract liabilities. Management corrected the 
classification and has reclassified provision relating to default and refund claims amounting to AED 14,329 thousand 
as at 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 from “insurance and other receivables” and to “insurance contract 
liabilities”. 
 
m. Reclassification of provision for promotion and marketing fees 
 
During the current year, management noted that provision for promotion and marketing fees related to credit life 
insurance contracts was not classified and presented within “insurance and other payables but incorrectly included 
in “insurance and other receivables”. Management corrected the classification and has reclassified provision for 
promotion and marketing fees amounting to AED 1,063 thousand ” as at 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 from 
“insurance and other receivables” to “insurance and other payables”. 
 
n.  Reclassification of reinsurance premiums ceded 
 
In the current year, management noted that the reinsurance premiums relating to unit linked products were recorded 
net of amounts invested on behalf of the policyholders within “Net change in unearned premiums, mathematical 
reserve and policyholders’ reserve” in the statement of income. IFRS requires such amounts to be shown gross and 
not on a net basis. For the year ended 31 December 2020, management corrected the classification from “Net change 
in unearned premiums, mathematical reserve and policyholders’ reserve” to “Reinsurance premiums ceded” 
amounting to AED 43,326 thousand to present the amounts on a gross basis. 
 
o. Reclassification of gain / (loss) on unit linked investments and net changes in reserves for unit linked reserves 
 
During the current year, management noted that the ‘Net movement in reserve of unit linked products’ included within 
‘Net change in unearned premium, mathematical reserve and policyholders’ reserve’ and the ‘Net movement in fair 
value of investments held for unit linked products’ in the statement of income were recorded net of charges and sale 
of investments. As at 31 December 2020, management has corrected and reclassified ‘Net movement in reserve of 
unit linked products’ included within ‘Net change in unearned premium, mathematical reserve and policyholders’ 
reserve’ amounting to AED 15,989 thousand to the ‘Net movement in fair value of investments held for unit linked 
products’ in the statement of income. 
 
 
 
 
 



Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 
(continued) 
 

91 
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p. Correction of key management compensation  
 
Management noted that the disclosure for key management compensation included 3 employees instead of 1 employee 
for the year ended 31 December 2020. Management corrected the compensation for key management personnel of 
AED 4,440 thousand to AED 3,900 thousand for short term benefits and AED 330 thousand to AED 200 thousand for 
long term benefits to conform to requirements of the IFRS. 
 
q. Reclassification of prior period items within the statement of cashflows 
 
During the current year, the Company noted the certain items in the statement of cashflows in year ended 31 December 
2020, were incorrectly presented in “Net movement in fair value of investments held for unit linked products”, 
“Increase in insurance and other payables”, “Purchase of policyholders' of unit-linked products”, “Proceeds from 
disposal of investments held at FVTOCI”, Purchase of investments held at FVTPL (excluding unit linked assets). 
 
Furthermore, additional line items, “Provision for doubtful debts”, “Increase in unit linked investments” “Increase in 
unit linked liabilities” were added for better presentation.  
 
These adjustment were internal reclassifications between “Net cash from operating activities and “Net cash from 
investing activities” and did not have impact on closing balance of cash and cash equivalents at the year ended 31 
December 2020. 
 
28 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
There have been no events subsequent to the statement of financial position date that would significantly affect the 
amounts and the disclosures reported in the financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended ended 
31 December 2021. 
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Introduction 
 
About this report  
We, Union Insurance company, are pleased to issue our Sustainability report for 
the year 2021. Through this report, we are highlighting our capabilities and 
achievements that comply with the ESG values and objectives.   
 
This report has been issued in compliance with the disclosure guidance set by the 
Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange on Environmental, Social & Governance (ESG) 
Disclosures for listed companies.  

 
About us 
Union Insurance was established in 1998 with a paid-up capital of over AED 330 
million. It is licensed by the Central Bank of UAE and listed on the Abu Dhabi 
Securities Exchange, with its corporate office located in Dubai. 
 
At Union Insurance, we provide a comprehensive range of retail and commercial 
insurance products to clients in the UAE, as well as the Middle East. Led by some 
of the most experienced and respected professionals in the industry, we make it a 
point to offer innovative, superior-value insurance coverage. 
 
This includes both standard and customised policies to help individuals; small, 
medium, and large enterprises; and government entities, obtain reliable and cost-
effective insurance covers. We offer additional insurance services as well. They 
include risk assessment and gap analysis of insurance coverage, conducted by 
professionals with decades of experience. 
 
Our comprehensive coverage in areas including (but not limited to) life, health, 
automobiles, property, engineering, liability and maritime, frees our clients to focus 
on their core operations, and gives them the surety of having robust insurance 
policies to manage various risks. 
 
We have obtained ISO 14001, OHSAS 18001, ISO 9001 and ISO 10002 
certification. 

 
Mission  
To deliver innovative, high-value insurance products that provide better risk 
management solutions to individuals, companies and governments. 

 
Vision  
To be the trusted insurance provider in the United Arab Emirates and wider Middle 
East region. 

 

Values  
Empowerment- Equal Opportunity- Friendship- Innovation- Quality- Reliability- 
Social Responsibility- Teamwork- Trust  
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A Successful Growth Story 
 
  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Financial Stability 
 
 

Highlights  
 
Management  
Union Insurance management’s collective experience and its low turnover for the 
past decade has positively impacted the company progress and instilled 
confidence in its direction and business strategy.    
 
Union management team comprises well experienced and qualified senior 
professionals. All the key positions such as in Underwriting, Finance and 
Accounting, Legal, Actuary, IT and Business are filled with professionally qualified 
personnel. 
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Reinsurance Arrangements  
Union is supported by a panel of leading reinsurers who have long standing 
arrangements with the company. This has helped in sustaining the financial 
stability of Union.  
 

Key Performance Indicators 

 

2020 

 

2021 

     

  

AED'000 

 

AED'000 

     
Gross Written Premium 

 

               867,911  

 

               900,083  

     
Net Earned Premium 

 

               307,863  

 

               264,994  

     
Reinsurance Ratio 

 

57.2% 

 

58.2% 

     
Net Claims Incurred Ratio 

 

42.3% 

 

57.3% 

     
Combined Ratio 

 

100.6% 

 

97.1% 

     
Return on Average Equity 

 

-1.7% 

 

5.8% 

     
SCR Solvency Margin Surplus/(Deficit) 

 

                 21,186  

 

                  (2,299) 

     
Solvency Ratio 

 

112.9% 

 

98.3% 

 
 Solvency and Investments 
The Company recorded a provision against advances for real estate properties 
during 2021 resulting in solvency deficiency. The Company has submitted an initial 
solvency recovery plan on 11 November 2021 detailing the proposed course of 
action. The CBUAE has vide its communication dated 13 January 2022  gave the 
company time till 30 September 2022 towards the restoration of solvency. The 
Company, as part of its submitted action plan, divested the concentrated equity 
position on one investment during November 2021. This has resulted in reducing 
the solvency deficiency by 94%. The solvency deficit as at 31 December 2021 
stands at AED (2.3 million) and the company is confident of restoring the solvency 
during the 1st quarter 2022.   

The company monitors its solvency position regularly.  
 
As at 31st December 2021, the company has total invested assets of AED 338 
million with 88% invested in Cash and Deposits. 

 
Rating 

The Company’s Financial Strength Rating of B+ (Good) and Issuer Credit Rating 
of (BBB-) was affirmed by the International Credit Rating Agency A. M. 
Best.  According to AM Best’s Press Release on 09th December 2021 – “these 



 

6 

 

ratings reflect Union’s Balance Sheet strength, which A.M. Best categorizes as 
strong, as well as its adequate operating performance, limited business profile and 
appropriate enterprise risk management”. 

 

Claims Management  
We are committed to settling claims quickly and efficiently to ensure that the 
insured, who suffered financial losses, is able to come back to business quickly. 
The claims we pay towards Healthcare, Credit, Property and Liability are examples 
of where our company has helped individuals and companies, suffering from 
financial losses, by providing them with payments, either on indemnity basis or 
fixed sum assured and thereby contributing to the welfare of the economy.   
 
The table below summarises our claims payments over each of the last 5 years. 
Our experience has been consistent over all years, with net loss ratios between 40 
– 60%, demonstrating our stability and sustainability.  
 

Net Claims Analysis AED'000s 

Loss Year 

Incurred 

Claims  

 Earned 

Premium  Loss Ratio 

2017           257,054            427,057  60% 

2018           186,144            389,950  48% 

2019           159,668            320,143  50% 

2020           130,068            291,394  45% 

2021           171,164            292,201  59% 

TOTAL           904,098        1,720,745  53% 

  
 
Our incurred claims represent the total claims expected, including claims already 
paid. Our future estimates are based on recent experience and these are updated 
on a quarterly basis in case of any adverse experience. This is done to minimise 
unexpected claims and ensure sustainability in the long term. This demonstrates 
our commitment to ensuring that policyholder liabilities are met appropriately. 
 
Further, our efficient underwriting processes result in healthy loss ratios, ensuring 
that we have sufficient funds to cover the fixed and variable expenses associated 
with the business. This is vital to ensure our business remains sustainable.  

 
COVID 
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With regards to Covid claims, we have continued to cover the financial costs with 
respect to the impact of Covid on health, even before the government capped 
hospital costs, we were fulfilling our obligations and covering the costs, and we’re 
projecting expected covid-related claims costs based on realistic assumptions, 
monitoring and updating the analysis every quarter.  
 
In Health insurance, we have responded to 100% of the suspected and reported 
Covid cases and paid total claims of AED2,824,104.45 till 31 December 2021. 
 
In Life insurance, we have also contributed towards the welfare of the society and 
the economic growth by compensating people for their losses incurred by the 
pandemic. In 2020, we paid a total AED AED 25,720,806/- in Covid related life 
insurance claims.   

Corporate Governance  
 
Business Continuity 

Our business continuity plan ensures that we are prepared for any disruption.  
 
One of the key focus in our BCP and Disaster Recover is the recovery of a 
company's IT system after a crisis considering the Recovery Point Objective and 
Recovery Time Objective. In order to achieve this, we have a detailed backup 
policy along and our primary data center is situated in Dubai with Disaster 
Recovery in Abu Dhabi. 

 
Compliance & Governance  
 

The Compliance and Corporate ethics policies have been implemented and these 
are our enabler in sustainability framework.  
 
The Regulatory areas are given outmost priority and adherence to regulatory 

Compliance requirements are always ensured. The Corporate Code of Conduct 

policy has been revised and updated from time to time. The recent update was 

approved by the Board in 2021 and implemented for all employees and Board of 

Directors and the compliance to this is being monitored. We have robust and 

comprehensive process for handling all relevant regulatory and compliance 

requirements including submission to the Regulatory bodies.  The dedicated 

Compliance team as part of UIC line of defense is formed to Liaise with Regulatory 

bodies and responsible for Compliance Monitoring framework. Following are the 

key highlights related to UIC Sustainability in Compliance: 

 

1. UIC Compliance Manual 
2. Anti-Money Laundering Policy/ AML Screening system 
3. Effective Corporate Governance Framework 
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4. Compliance Management System with Regulatory Repository 
5. Compliance Owners and Compliance monitoring Controls 
6. Compliance Training to Employees 

 

Risk Management  
 

The goal of UIC Risk Management process is to ensure that the operations which 

expose us to risk are consistent with our Strategy /Business plans and overall Risk 

philosophy while maintaining an appropriate balance between risk/ reward and 

enhance the stakeholders value. The Insurance processes are designed within the 

Risk Management framework to ensure assessment of risks prior to underwriting. 

The Risk Management principles are embedded in UIC Operational and Financial 

Processes and further mitigation/controls are assigned for the risks which are 

having impact on UIC Operational Processes.  

The Board monitors the overall UIC Risk Management framework, process and 

practices and approves the overall Risk Appetite. The Audit and Risk Management 

Committee of the Board has primary oversight over Enterprise Risk Management 

and Senior Management share responsibility and accountability for effective 

management of Risks across the Organization. The Risk registers of all the key 

processes like Underwriting, Operational, Financial and Regulatory areas are 

developed with the Mitigation/Controls. Further the Emerging risks are also 

monitored for risk exposure and time to time communicated within the Risk owners 

to have adequate controls in their area of Operation. The qualitative and 

Quantitative approach is being followed for assessment of risks and monitoring the 

Risk exposure for each type of risk category. Following are the key highlights 

related to UIC Sustainability in Risk Management: 

1. Audit and Risk Committee Oversight Role  
2. ERM Procedures  
3. Enterprise wise Risk Register with Mitigation Controls and Regular Risk 

Assessment  
4. Risk Management (GRC) system 
5. Risk Appetite and Tolerance Limits  
6. Risk Culture with the Functional Departments 

 

Distribution Channels  
 

In addition to our 8 offices and branches across the UAE, Union utilises a number 
of diversified channels ensuring sustainability, reduction in costs and continued 
growth. A budding channel is social media where we started to engage with our 
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customers through five platforms (Facebook, Instagram, LinkedIn, Twitter and 
WhatsApp). 
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Digitalization & Transformation 
 

• Our digital transformation strategy ensures that technology is harnessed to 
cater to our customers evolving needs and enhance our operational 
efficiencies.  
 

• We enable our stakeholders to engage with us through various digital 

platforms which ensures sustainability in the digital era. We believe in 

providing self-servicing capabilities through our various B2C & B2B Portals 

along with automations in the area of Claims, Quote Generations, 

Business Analytics etc. 

 

• With digitization rises the need of data security and customer data 
protection. We adhere to NESA, ADHICS Standards and have a 
comprehensive Information Security policy. 
 

• We also have ISO27001, NESA, PCI DSS, SOC Compliant Data Center. 
Our multi-layered security architecture protects from cyber-attacks and 
Intrusion attempts.  
 

• We have an efficient approach to date backup and recovery. We keep a 
secure storage of data that prevents loss and permits timely restoration.  
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Social Responsibility  

 

Social Initiatives by UIC 
 

 
Under our value-added service, Balsam, we continue to sign up new partnerships 
to provide our clients with several carefully designed programs that provide relief 
to certain areas that aren’t covered under traditional health insurance policies.  
 
During the holy month of Ramadan, we organised clothes donation campaign with 
Dar Al Ber Society. Collection boxes were placed in all of our offices and we were 
able to donate 7 full boxes to the charity organisation.  
 
In collaboration with our Health Department, we organised a campaign for unused 
medications to distribute it to the needy who cannot afford the treatment, ensure 
safe disposal of medicine and increases awareness of the importance of avoiding 
medicine wastage to reduce financial and environmental impact. In total, we 
collected approximately: 1000 tablets, 30 sachets, 9 syrup bottles which were 
given to DHA or any registered UAE charities. 
 
Employees  

Ensuring employee wellness is an important objective at Union Insurance. The 
management is actively involved in identifying and adopting/implementing policy 
changes that benefit our employees.  
 
In Q3 2021, we launched Union Fitness Challenge where employees were invited 
to take part in a 3-month fitness challenge in a fun and creative manner.  
 
Additionally, as part of promoting a healthy corporate culture and emphasising the 
importance of physical activity, we have supported our 27 employees who joined 
the Dubai run on Nov 29.  
 
In line with the federal government initiative, we have promoted work life balance 
by adopting a 4.5 day work week.  
 
We have also tied up with Noon to offer our employees and their families discounts 
on their purchases.  
 
Union also issues a bi-monthly staff magazine, Al Nabaa, to facilitate employee 
engagement where they learn about each other’s achievements and personal 
milestones.  
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Diversity and Inclusion 
Our Diversity and Inclusion framework helps UIC to target initiatives and improve 
diversity and inclusion across the corporate. UIC is committed to developing 
policies, practices, and ways of working that support diversity. Employees from 
over 23 different nationalities are currently working at UIC. 
 
Equal opportunity is offered at UIC and women form 36% of the workforce vs men 
at 64%  
 
All employees are evaluated basis their contribution to their respective teams and 
the organization. The organization also complies with all the statutory requirements 
listed by the Ministry of Labor.  

 
Women in Leadership 
As an organization, we help nurture and grow individuals to lead senior positions 
like Branch Managers, Actuarial Services, etc…   
 
Emiratisation 
Inspired by the UAE Vision 2021 that aims to empower UAE nationals to drive 
economic growth by increasing their participation in the labour market, we are 
firmly committed to nurturing and developing the local Emirati community for the 
long-term benefit of our business and the national economy. In 2021, 10.1% Of 
our workforce are UAE nationals and we continue to develop Emirati talent and to 
meet the regulatory requirements of Emiratisation.  
 
 
Training and Career development 
A New Joiner Orientation (NJO) is the first training session that all employees go 
through. This session is aimed to help the employees get better acquainted with 
the organization structure and technical areas/departments.  
 
Post the NJO, each department head puts the employee through a training 
program/period. This is managed directly by the department and is customized 
basis the role and career level of the individual. The objective is to ensure that the 
employees is coached by experienced team members on the tasks and process 
using real life examples and situations. This also allows the employees to 
understand their role, responsibilities, and key performance areas.   
 
We also provide annual online training for AML and IT Security via our inhouse 
training platform.  
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Environmental Responsibility 

 

Energy Efficiency  
We aim to be energy efficient at Union in line with the UAE’s direction to reduce 
emission.  
 
We have LED energy efficient lights in our local offices and the air conditioning is 
programmed to switch off when no one is in the office.  We have also instilled a 
culture where our staff switch off the lights before they leave.  

 

Paper  
We are continuously introducing initiatives that help reduce our environmental 
footprint across our local offices. We also engage employees through eco-friendly 
awareness and education to be more environmentally responsible.  
 
We strive to conduct our business in a manner that causes no harm to the 
surrounding living environment. As we are taking significant steps in our digital 
transformation process, we are reducing the use of paper. Our customers can buy 
policies online as well as submit their claims. This has also helped in reducing air 
pollution as fewer customers find it necessary to visit our offices for insurance 
services.  

 
We have tied-up with Greenbox to recycle paper across our offices. In 2021, we 
have recycled 589 kg of paper, down 15 % from 2020. 

 

Ink cartridges 

We are a member of HP Planet Partners for recycling used ink cartridges and till 
31 December 2021 we have recycled 2481 ink cartridges.  
 
In some select departments, black and white printers have replaced color printing 
for a more environmental-friendly printing as it reduces consumption of ink.  

 
 
 
 
 


